
 

Borough of Telford and Wrekin 

Environment Scrutiny Committee 

Wednesday 20 March 2024 

6.00 pm 

Council Chamber, Third Floor, Southwater One, Telford, TF3 4JG 

   

 

Democratic Services: 

 

Sam Yarnall 01952 382193 

Media Enquiries: 

 

Corporate Communications 01952 382406 

 

Committee Members: 

 

Councillors M Boylan (Chair), P Davis (Vice-Chair), 

T L B Janke, I Preece, H Morgan, T J Nelson and H Rhodes 

 
 Agenda Page 

 
1.0   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.0   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3.0   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 

3 - 8 

4.0   Telford and Wrekin Council Becoming Carbon Neutral and Plastic 
Free Update 
 
To receive an update report on Telford & Wrekin Council becoming 
Carbon Neutral and Plastic Free. 
 

9 - 14 

5.0   Shropshire Good Food - 12 Month Review 
 
An annual update on the Shropshire Good Food Project. 
 

15 - 64 

6.0   Work Programme Review 
 
To review the Environment Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme. 
 
 
 

65 - 70 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

7.0   Chair's Update 
 

 

 
 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council 
£15.22 and saved 6.1kg of CO2, based on average agenda printing costs for the 2022/23 
municipal year. 

Page 2



 

 

ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Environment Scrutiny Committee held on 
Tuesday 6 February 2024 at 6.00 pm in Walker Room, Meeting Point 

House, Southwater Square, Telford, TF3 4HS 
 

 
Present: Councillors M Boylan (Chair), P Davis (Vice-Chair), 

H Morgan and T J Nelson 
 
Also Present: Councillor C Healy (Cabinet Member: Climate Action, 

Green Spaces, Heritage & Leisure)  
 
In Attendance:  E Harvey (Lead Lawyer: Property & Commercial), 

V Hulme (Development Management Service Delivery 
Manager), S Martin, F Mercer (Director: Communities, 
Customer & Commercial Services) and S Yarnall 
(Democracy Officer (Scrutiny)) 

 
Apologies:   Councillors T L B Janke, I Preece and H Rhodes 
 
ENVSC19 Declarations of Interest 
 
None. 
 
ENVSC20 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2023 
be confirmed and signed by the Chair. 
 
ENVSC21 Biodiversity Net Gain 
 
The Service Delivery Manager: Development Management provided an 
update on Biodiversity Net Gain following the last formal Committee Meeting 
held on 29 November 2023 and further guidance received from Central 
Government. The update summarised that legislation for Biodiversity Net Gain 
is made under the Environment Act, which came into effect from 2021 to 
replace previous European legislation. The legislation required a minimum of 
10% net gain on most planning applications, which not only conserved the 
local environment, but enhanced it.  
 
Members were informed that legislation for Biodiversity Net Gain was laid in 
Parliament on 19 January 2024. The report outlined that under the new 
legislation, large applications would apply the minimum 10% Net Gain from 4 
February 2024 and for smaller applications it would be in force from 2 April 
2024. Members were informed that there were some exemptions to this 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

legislation such as if the application was small and self-built and whether an 
application resulted from the remaining High Speed Rail 2 development.  
 
In terms of planning applications, Members were informed that the conditions 
for Biodiversity Net Gain would be set out along with any S106 agreement and 
any additional requirements.  
 
As part of the legislative changes, each local area had net gain specific 
priorities which were classified as part of a Local Nature Recovery Strategy. 
At the time of the meeting the strategy was still being worked on and it would 
be led by Shropshire Council.  
 
Members were informed that as part of this, developers would need to detail 
how they would be contributing to Biodiversity Net Gain over a 30 year period. 
During that 30 year period, they would be monitored to ensure that the 
environment was being conserved.  
 
The report set out that the Council sought to go beyond the 10% standard 
minimum on applications and look towards a 20% Net Gain. This would 
incorporate measurable methods to monitor the delivery of Net Gain and there 
would be a Biodiversity Hierarchy of the environment of which developers 
would be able to work towards. Members were informed that developers 
would be able to deliver the Net Gain off-site but were informed that they 
could incur further costs. The Committee were advised that developers would 
be able to contribute to Council owned land as part of that off-site net gain.  
 
Following the presentation, Members asked the following questions:- 
 
The Biodiversity Net Gain legislation was a complex concept, how were the 
environmental units assessed to deliver net gain off-site? 
 
Under the Biodiversity Hierarchy there were different levels of net gain for the 
type of natural habitat that developers support. This was under an official 
metric from Natural England and it was currently on its fourth version. 
Developers would be asked how they would be able to deliver this on-site in 
the first instance and then look towards off-site delivery if on-site was not 
possible.  
 
Were there examples of the exact measures that developers would be using 
to meet the net gain targets? 
 
Members were informed that the exact measures were still being finalised by 
Natural England but it was down to interpretation of the net gain of certain 
habitats. It was explained that a development site would not be able to deliver 
the work that was below the net gain and would need to be at least on the 
same scale plus 20% net gain of the habitat that was removed. 

Page 4



 

 

 
Would members of the public be able to understand this in terms of square 
metered metrics? 
 
The planning portal and software system had been updated so the units of net 
gain were in an understandable metric such as squared metre units which 
would allow for monitoring over a 30 year period as well as being accessible 
for the public.  
 
Were Officers still working to understand the detail of the changes that the 
legislation would have? 
 
Officers were still working through the details of the legislation and there 
would be further guidance from the Government as more of the legislation 
would be implemented.  
 
Members commented that they appreciated the opportunity for the Committee 
to provide input during early stages of the policy development and that the 
Committee would be able to further review it following its formal 
implementation. 
 
Is there support for smaller developers to meet the net gain targets as well as 
support for officers to monitor the net gain requirements? 
 
Support would be available for smaller developers to identify possible areas 
for net gain. In terms of support for officers to monitor the net gain, a new 
burdens fund of £20,000 from the government would be available for four 
years to support the development of the software as well as monitoring the 
Net Gain. 
 
With the development of new homes, would there be issues in relation to the 
Local Plan and the planning of new homes? 
 
The Local Plan policies help to determine the required standards for new 
homes and developments. This would not have an impact on the net gain for 
developers and helped to support more environmental measures as part of 
the development. 
 
Were there differences when it came to building for an industrial site? 
 
The levels of net gain would be determined by the units defined through the 
number of hectares that were stated as part of the planning application in both 
the space it would take to develop and the levels it would add to the net gain. 
 
How would the legislation impact Parish and Town Councils consideration of 
planning applications and would there be any advice for them?  

Page 5



 

 

 
The Service Delivery Manager: Development Management informed Members 
that they would be able to put together a leaflet and training sessions to 
support with understanding of the legislative changes around Biodiversity. 
There were also specific officers to help support and provide advice when 
required. 
 
After the 30 year period of monitoring the Biodiversity Net Gain of a site, 
would developers then be able to develop on that site? 
 
Members were informed that the guidance does not clearly indicate if a 
developer would be able to develop on the same area after the 30 years had 
passed. However, it was explained that the idea of the 30 year monitoring 
period was to allow the habitat to be established and then be factored in as 
part of the Biodiversity Hierarchy.  
 
Does the scale and location of the net gain impact the application and 
development? 
 
Members were informed that developers should look towards the net gain 
being on-site, however, it was recognised that this might not always be 
possible. The Local Nature Recovery Strategy highlighted that the net gain 
could be pooled with areas of Shropshire to create a vaster area of green 
space to create more meaningful impacts. 
 
Following questions, Members voted on the recommendations and moved to 
include future update of Biodiversity Net Gain on the work programme going 
forward. 
 
RESOLVED – that: 
 
a) The approach set out in delivering biodiversity net gain via the 
development process for local communities, including advising officers 
on their preferred option, which will be taken forward for further 
investigation including regarding viability, be endorsed by the 
Environment Scrutiny Committee; 
 
b) The proactive approach to working with evolving legislation and 
guidance to facilitate sustainable development across the borough, be 
noted; and 
 
c) That a further update on Biodiversity Net Gain be presented to the 
Committee to monitor progress.  
 
ENVSC22 Work Programme Review 
 

Page 6



 

 

The Democracy Officer (Scrutiny) provided an update on the work 
programme. Members were advised that the work programme was a working 
document of which items could be added on for the committee’s 
consideration. Members were informed that the work programme would be 
discussed amongst the Chair and Officers during the Keeping in Touch 
Meetings. The Democracy Officer (Scrutiny) informed Members that in relation 
to the River Pollution working group, Severn Trent had agreed prior to the 
meeting that they would be able to host a site visit to one of their treatment 
plants as part of the working group. The Democracy Officer (Scrutiny) 
informed Members that should they wish to attend the visit, to express their 
interest by contacting the relevant officers. 
 
ENVSC23 Chair's Update 
 
The Chair informed Members that the next scheduled meeting was due to 
take place on 20 March 2024. 
 
The meeting ended at 6.56 pm 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date: 

 
Wednesday 20 March 2024 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Borough of Telford and Wrekin 

Environment Scrutiny Committee 

Wednesday 20th March 2024 

Telford and Wrekin Council Becoming Carbon Neutral and Plastic Free 

Update 

 
 
Cabinet Member: Cllr Carolyn Healy - Cabinet Member: Climate Action, Green 

Spaces, Heritage & Leisure 

Lead Director: Felicity Mercer - Director: Communities, Customer & 

Commercial Services 

Service Area: Communities, Customer & Commercial Services 

Report Author: Ian Wykes - Team Leader - Climate Change & Sustainability 

Officer Contact 
Details: 

Tel:  01962 384960 Email: Ian.Wykes@telford.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All 

Key Decision: Not Key Decision  

Forward Plan: Not Applicable 

Report considered by: Cabinet 19th October 2023 

Audit Committee 24th January 2024 

Environment Scrutiny 20th March 2024 

 

 
 
1.0 Recommendations for decision/noting: 

1.1 To note and review the update on Telford and Wrekin Council Becoming Carbon 
Neutral and Plastic Free. 

 
2.0 Purpose of Report 

To allow Environment Scrutiny the opportunity to  
 

2.1 Note and review the Council’s progress on becoming Carbon Neutral and Plastic 

free as set out in the report to Cabinet on 19th October 2023 (See Appendix A) 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Telford & Wrekin Council Becoming Carbon Neutral and Plastic Free Update 

2 
 

 
 
3.0 Background 

 

3.1 Tackling climate change is one of five priorities set out in the current Council Plan. 

In July 2019 the Council declared a climate change emergency and made a 

commitment to reduce its carbon emissions to net zero by 2030. Through its 

support of a borough partnership the council is also playing a full part in helping 

the wider borough achieve the same target. 

 

3.2 The Council has also made a commitment to remove single-use plastics from the 

Council's operations and activities, replacing them with sustainable alternatives, by 

the end of 2023. 

 

4.0 Summary of main proposals 

 

4.1 In summary the Cabinet report can be broken down into three sections  
 

 It provides an update of the work undertaken by the Council since the last 

report in September 2022. 

 

 It sets out the progress the Council has made against the net zero target 

and the way we measure emissions.  

 

 It includes an updated climate change action plan as set out in Appendix B 

 

4.2 The council achieved an overall reduction of 60% in CO2e emissions from a 

baseline of 2018/19. This is considerably ahead of the 36% reduction based on a 

straight-line year on year reduction.  

 

Particular highlights from 2022/23 include.  

4.3 An overall reduction in gas usage across the Council’s operational estate. This 

may be due, in part, to recent initiatives such as switching the heating of Newport 

Swimming pool from gas to an air source heat pump resulting in a 40% reduction 

in gas for the site. 

 

4.4 The Council was awarded £683,370 from the Office of Zero Emission Vehicles 

(OZEV), On-Street Residential Charge Point (ORCS) fund for the installation of 70 

EV charge points across 21 Council car parks. In addition, the borough has been 

awarded an indicative amount (£1,020,000) by OZEV to increase the number of 

on-street EV charge points. 

 

 

 

Page 10



Telford & Wrekin Council Becoming Carbon Neutral and Plastic Free Update 

3 
 

4.5 The Council continues to switch to low emission vehicles across its fleet. An 

additional 6 electric vehicles for the Highways and Enforcement Team, two electric 

minibuses for Arthog (funded through our municipal investment) and a vehicle for 

Libraries. 

 

4.6 The publication of the Council’s Climate Change supplementary planning 

document (SPD) setting out guidance on sustainable new build for developers.   

 
5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The alternative option would be to do nothing and not deliver on the Council’s 
climate change commitments. However, this could lead to serious reputational 
risks for the Council as a community leader.  
 
 Not addressing issues such as energy efficiency of buildings or development of 
 renewable energy generation opportunities would also lead to significant cost 
implications through increase in fuel bills and loss of income. Doing nothing would 
also lead to a negative impact on the health and social / economic wellbeing of 
Telford and Wrekin businesses, communities, and residents. 

 
 
5 Key Risks 

 

6.1 Committee Independent Assessment of UK Climate Risk for the UK’s third Climate 

Change Risk Assessment (CCRA3), published in June 20211 sets out the priority 

climate change risks for the UK.   In summary, risks in the report include:  

 

 The impacts of climate change on the natural environment. 

 An increase in the range, quantities, and consequences of pests, 

pathogens, and invasive species. 

 The risk of climate change impacts, especially more frequent flooding, and 

coastal erosion, causing damage to infrastructure services. 

 A reduction in public water supplies due to increasing periods of water 

scarcity. 

 The impact of extreme temperatures, high winds, and lightning on the 

transport network. 

 The impact of increasing high temperatures on people’s health and 

wellbeing. 

 Increased severity and frequency of flooding. 

 Disruption to the delivery of health and social care services due to a greater 

frequency of extreme weather. 

 Damage to cultural heritage assets as a result of temperature, precipitation, 

groundwater and landscape changes. 

                                                 
1 https://www.ukclimaterisk.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/CCRA-Evidence-Report-England-Summary-
Final.pdf 

Page 11



Telford & Wrekin Council Becoming Carbon Neutral and Plastic Free Update 

4 
 

 Impacts internationally that may affect the UK, such as risks to food 

availability, safety and security, risks to international law and governance 

from climate change that will affect the UK, international trade routes, public 

health. 

 

Therefore, there are significant risks as outlined should the Council fail to mitigate 
climate change and ensure that residents, businesses, and the natural 
environment are able to adapt to the future climate. 

 
7.0 Council Priorities 
 
7.1 The Councils’ work on climate change and sustainability is a direct response to the 

Council’s priority “Our natural environment is protected, and the Council has a 
leading role in addressing the climate emergency”. However, as a cross cutting 
agenda it also has a significant contribution towards all other Council priorities 
including: 

 
‒ Every child, young person, and adult lives well in their community. 

‒ Everyone benefits from a thriving economy. 

‒ All neighbourhoods are a great place to live. 

‒ A community-focussed, innovative Council providing efficient, effective, and 

quality services. 

 
8.0 Financial Implications 
 
8.1 An approved allocation of £4m was included in the capital programme to support 

Climate Change initiatives; spend in previous years totalled £1.25m which leaves 
£2.75m available in 2023/24. This is being allocated to schemes in the Action Plan 
which are detailed in this report and appropriate finance support is being provided.  
Finance will also provide support in relation to any bids for external funding as 
required. 

 
8.2 The Community Municipal Investment was launched in May 2022 and provides an 

opportunity for individuals to lend money to the Council which will be used to fund 
projects across Telford & Wrekin to help tackle the climate emergency.  This is a 
new borrowing source for the Council (permitted in the approved Treasury 
Strategy), which is an alternative to loans from the Public Works Loans Board 
(PWLB) and is specifically aimed to support the Council’s Climate Change 
Agenda.  The cost of borrowing to the Council, including fees, was comparable 
with PWLB rates at the time of entering the arrangement.  

 
 
9.0 Legal and HR Implications 
 
9.1 The Climate Change Act 2008 (as amended) establishes a legally binding target to 

reduce the UK’s greenhouse gas emissions by 100% by 2050 when compared 
with the 1990 baseline. At a local level, Section 19(1A) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires local planning authorities to include in 
their local plans, policies designed to secure that the development and use of land 

Page 12



Telford & Wrekin Council Becoming Carbon Neutral and Plastic Free Update 

5 
 

in the local planning authority's area contribute to the mitigation of, and adaptation 
to, climate change. In the management of its activities, provision of its services 
and performance of its functions, local Councils are in a position to play a vital role 
in meeting the challenges posed by climate change. The Council has wide scope 
to decide how best to address these challenges.  

 
9.2 The Council has the legal power to undertake the activities set out in the report.  

Implementation of the proposals in this report may give rise to specific legal issues 
upon which specific legal advice will be provided as necessary.  

 
9.3 There are no specific human resource implications arising from this report. 
 
 
10.0 Ward Implications 
 
10.1 This report has a borough wide impact.  
 
 
11.0 Health, Social and Economic Implications 
 
11.1 Climate change will continue to have a significant impact on the health of Telford 

and Wrekin’s residents as well as on their social and economic wellbeing. For 
example, July 2022 saw the highest temperatures on record. Heatwaves can lead 
to very serious health implications particularly for the most vulnerable2 Many of the 
actions set out in the climate change plan have considerable co-benefits. The 
Climate Change Fund supports businesses and community groups with energy 
efficiency measures which should help address recent rises in fuel prices. 

  
 
12.0 Equality and Diversity Implications 
 
12.1 The Council’s Climate Change Action Plan takes account of the legal requirement 

to pay due regard to the aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty. Key to this is 
consideration of people’s specific needs based on their protected characteristics.  

 
  People who share protected characteristics of age, race, ethnicity, and disability 

are often disproportionately affected by climate change and its consequences. 
This is true locally and internationally. Extreme weather events, for example heat 
waves most detrimentally affect older residents and those with pre-existing 
respiratory and cardiovascular conditions.  

 
 The success of our climate change activity relies on active participation by the 

whole community. Steps are taken to make sure that events are inclusive, and the 
differing needs of individuals are considered so that they can access activities and 
contribute effectively. 

 
 
 

                                                 
2 https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lancet/article/PIIS0140-6736(18)30434-3/fulltext 

Page 13



Telford & Wrekin Council Becoming Carbon Neutral and Plastic Free Update 

6 
 

13.0 Climate Change and Environmental Implications 
 
13.1 This report sets out the key areas as to how Telford and Wrekin Council is helping 

address climate change and environmental implications. 
 
 
14.0  Appendices  
 

A Telford and Wrekin Council Becoming Carbon Neutral and Plastic Free 
Update – Cabinet Report 19th October 2023 

B Corporate Climate Change Action Plan 2023/24 
  
  

16.0  Report Sign Off 
 
Signed off by Date sent Date signed off Initials  
Legal 05/03/2024 07/03/2024 EH 
Finance 05/03/2024 07/03/2024 DR 

 

Page 14

https://democracy.telford.gov.uk/documents/g2403/Public%20reports%20pack%20Thursday%2019-Oct-2023%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.telford.gov.uk/documents/g2403/Public%20reports%20pack%20Thursday%2019-Oct-2023%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.telford.gov.uk/documents/g2403/Public%20reports%20pack%20Thursday%2019-Oct-2023%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10


VIS ION
OUR V IS ION  IS  FOR  REGENERAT IVE  AND  RES IL I ENT  FOOD  

AND  FARMING ,  ENABL ING  PEOPLE  AND  NATURE  TO  THRIVE .  

MISS ION
OUR MISS ION  IS  TO  BR ING  PEOPLE  TOGETHER  TO  CREATE  A  LOCAL  
FOOD SYSTEM IN  SHROPSHIRE  AND  TELFORD AND  WREK IN  WHICH 

IS . . .
 

WWW.SHROPSHIREGOODFOOD.ORG

GOOD FOR  PEOPLE ,  PLACE  AND  THE  PLANET .

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 5



AIMS

GOOD FOR  PEOPLE ,  PLACE  AND  THE  PLANET .

WWW.SHROPSHIREGOODFOOD.ORG

What  we  want  t o  
ach ieve

OBJECT IVES
How we  work

•  Bu i l d  commun i t y ,  connec t i ng  
peop le  th rough  f ood  to  each  o the r  

and  the  l and

•  Ensu re  eve ryone  has  access  t o  
su ff i c i en t  nu t r i t i ous  a ff o rdab le  f ood

•  C rea te  l i v e l i hood  oppor tun i t i e s ,  
f o rg ing  a  s t rong  l oca l  f ood  economy

•  Enab le  env i ronmenta l  r egenera t i on  
and  a  sh i f t  t o  ne t  ze ro  ca rbon  i n  

f ood  and  f a rming

•  Convene  and  Connec t  -  We  enab le  
co l l abo ra t i on  &  coopera t i on ,  

t h rough  know ledge  exchange  and  
bu i l d i ng  a  commun i t y  o f  suppor t .
•  I n fo rm and  I n sp i re  -  We  sha re  

s to r i e s  o f  poss ib i l i t y  f r om the  good  
p rac t i ce  o f  ou r  members .

•  Resource  and  Empower  -  We  
p rov ide  access  t o  r esources  &  sk i l l s  

t o  suppor t  l oca l  ac t i on .
•  V i s i on  and  Vo i ce  -  We  engage  
s t ra teg i ca l l y  w i th  counc i l s  t o  

suppor t  the  deve lopment  o f  f ood  
po l i c y  

We a re  commi t ted  to  soc ia l  j u s t i ce  and  an  
equ i tab le  f ood  sys tem based  i n  i nc lus i on  and  

cu l tu ra l  d i ve r s i t y .  We  suppor t  the  vo i ces  o f  the  
d i sen f ranch i sed .

OUR VALUES

EARTH  CARE
PEOPLE  CARE

FA IR  SHARE

We be l i e ve  i n  work ing  w i th  the  l and  and  
na tu re  t o  c rea te  eco log i ca l  we l l be ing  and  

a  r egenera t i ve  f ood  sys tem .

We  l ook  a f te r  each  o the r ,  c rea t i ng  
ne tworks  o f  commun i t y  and  

suppor t .

P
age 16



GOOD FOR  PEOPLE ,  PLACE  AND  THE  PLANET .

WE SUPPORT THE WORK OF ORGANISATIONS ACROSS THE COUNTY, CATALYSE NEW INITIATIVES 
and col laborat ions ,  and enable jo ined-up innovat ive th ink ing to improve access to good food and 

re imagine land stewardship .

@SHROPSHIREGOODFOOD

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



C R E A T I N G  A  L O C A L  F O O D  S Y S T E M  

O V E R V I E W

T h i s  s e r i e s  o f  c a s e  s t u d i e s
h a v e  b e e n  s u p p o r t e d  b y  t h e

C l i m a t e  C h a n g e  F u n d  a w a r d e d
b y  T & W  C o u n c i l  t o  i n v e s t i g a t e
t h e  s u s t a i n a b l e  f o o d  e c o n o m y
i n  t h e  b o r o u g h .  T h e y  e x a m i n e
a  c r o s s  s e c t i o n  o f  l o c a l  f o o d

b u s i n e s s e s  t h a t  h a v e
i n c o r p o r a t e d  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

p r a c t i c e s  i n t o  t h e i r
o p e r a t i o n s .  E a c h  b u s i n e s s
o p e r a t e s  w i t h i n  a  u n i q u e

n i c h e ,  b u t  t h e y  s h a r e  a
c o m m o n  c o m m i t m e n t  t o
e n v i r o n m e n t a l l y  f r i e n d l y

p r a c t i c e s  a n d  c o l l a b o r a t i o n
w i t h  l o c a l  p a r t n e r s  t o  p r o m o t e

s u s t a i n a b l e  f o o d
c o n s u m p t i o n .

E m m a  C a n t i l l i o n  
S G F P  C o o r d i n a t o r  -  F o o d

E c o n o m y

T h e  f o u n d e r s  a n d  m a n a g e r s  t h a t  h a v e  b e e n  p a r t  o f  t h i s  p r o j e c t  h a v e
d e m o n s t r a t e d  t h e  w i s h  t o  r u n  b u s i n e s s e s  w h e r e  p r o f i t a b i l i t y  a n d  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y
c a n  c o e x i s t .  T h e y  u n d e r s t a n d  t h a t  I n n o v a t i v e  t e c h n o l o g i e s ,  r e s p o n s i b l e  s u p p l y
c h a i n s ,  a n d  c i r c u l a r  b u s i n e s s  m o d e l s  d r i v e  p r o g r e s s  b u t  t i m e ,  r e s o u r c e s ,  t h e
a c c e s s  t o  f u n d i n g ,  g r a n t s  a n d  l o c a l  k n o w l e d g e  i s  l i m i t e d .
I n  o r d e r  t o  m a k e  i t  f e a s i b l e  f o r  b u s i n e s s e s  t o  a d o p t  e c o - f r i e n d l y  p r a c t i c e s  t h e r e
i s  a  n e e d  f o r  c o l l a b o r a t i o n  a m o n g  b u s i n e s s e s ,  b i g  a n d  s m a l l ,  w i t h  t h e  h o p e  t h a t
t h i s  w i l l  f o s t e r  a  s e n s e  o f  s h a r e d  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y .  I  w a s  o v e r w h e l m e d  b y  t h e
w i l l i n g n e s s  o f  a l l  o f  t h e  b u s i n e s s e s  t o  c o l l a b o r a t e ,  s h a r e  b e s t  p r a c t i c e  a n d
e d u c a t e  w i t h i n  t h e i r  l o c a l i t i e s  a n d  i n  a  b r o a d e r  s e n s e .

S U S T A I N A B L E  F O O D  B U S I N E S S E S  P L A Y  A  P I V O T A L  R O L E  I N
T H I S  N E E D  F O R  T R A N S F O R M A T I O N .  

G O O D  F O R  P E O P L  E ,  P L A C E  A N D  P L A N E T  .

Page 19

https://chathamsorganicdairy.co.uk/about/


SoFood!

Mike, the owner, and I discussed
their current sustainable
practices, challenges faced, and
potential areas for improvement. 

O V E R V I E W  F R O M  M I K E
This case study focuses on
SoFood a family run
catering company based
in Telford, formed with a
passion for creating and
delivering innovative,
fresh, and delicious food
to the surrounding area.
They cater for corporate
and private events across
T&W, alongside the
maintaining and filling of  
food vending machines 

Shropshire boasts a wealth of high-quality artisan
food suppliers and to support our fellow small
business owners, we use our local butchers, bakery, a
Shropshire dairy farm and greengrocers and always
aim to use locally sourced produce wherever possible.
The business has implemented various sustainability
measures and aims to minimise its environmental
impact. 

Current Sustainable Practices
SoFood has already taken significant steps to
incorporate climate change and sustainability
into its operations. Some of the existing practices
include:
1. Compostable Packaging: The business uses compostable
buffet trays for packaging, which can be recycled. This
reduces the amount of non-biodegradable waste generated.
2. Energy Efficiency: To minimise energy consumption, the
business actively switches off power when not in use and
looks for opportunities to reduce electricity bills. They
express a desire to invest in an electric fan to further reduce
energy consumption.
3. Waste Management: The business is exploring
composting options to effectively dispose of food waste.
They also questioned utilising the waste to generate gas,
which would be a significant environmental benefit, should
this be an option and funding help be available. However,
they think they maybe too small to be able to go down this
route.
4. Sustainable Utensils: The business uses wooden boards
and compostable utensils made from plant-based
materials. These alternatives to disposable plastic products
are more durable and have a reduced environmental
impact. The also re-use wine boxes for hampers and display
purposes. These are collected along with wooden boards.

Communication and Marketing
The business primarily relies on word-of-
mouth marketing and customer
recommendations to communicate its
sustainability initiatives. While they do not
actively engage in social media or
traditional advertising (no longer have a
marketing person), they acknowledge the
potential for increased business if they had
the resources to invest in marketing efforts.
Mike is aware of the importance of
communicating sustainability initiatives to
customers and mentions that acquiring an
electric van, for example, would be a
significant marketing opportunity.
Opportunities to promote their sustainability
efforts would be very welcome. Nine years
ago, they introduced their compostable
plates and cutlery, this was very newsworthy
and covered on BBC Radio Shropshire, as
they were the first to do so.

0 1 9 5 2  4 5 9 9 4 5
 H I @ S O F O O D . C O . U K

 M A P L E  H O U S E ,  Q U E E N S W A Y
B U S I N E S S  P A R K ,  T E L F O R D ,  

T F 1  7 U L

Page 20



Measurement of Environmental Impact: The business
expresses interest in measuring its climate change
impact and tracking progress in sustainability. However,
due to limited resources, they have not been able to
prioritise this. They acknowledge that measuring and
reporting environmental performance could enhance
their credibility and attract environmentally conscious
customers. Not aware of Cool Shropshire & Telford
initiative. They are also unable to measure where food
waste & compostable products end up after they have
left site. Any help with this would be greatly appreciated.

Collaboration with Local Suppliers: The business sees
potential in sourcing ingredients directly from local
growers and suppliers to reduce transportation
emissions. They express a desire to strengthen
collaborations with local producers and explore
opportunities for direct purchasing.

Accessing Grants and Funding: The catering business
highlights the need for funding options that specifically
support sustainability initiatives for small businesses.
They mention grant availability but note that the process
is time-consuming and challenging for a small business
with few employees, this has put them off applying.

O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F O R
I M P R O V E M E N T :

Challenges and Financial
Constraints 

While the business strives to be
environmentally conscious, financial
constraints often hinder the
adoption of additional sustainable
practices. The cost implications
associated with implementing
certain measures, such as installing
solar panels or purchasing electric
vehicles, pose challenges for a small
business. Mike expressed interest in
funding opportunities that could
assist them in overcoming these
financial barriers.

Needs, requirements and wishes

We chatted about the importance of knowledge
exchange and collaboration with other businesses,
including larger companies, through food forums or
focus groups. As far as continuing sustainability
initiatives & goals going forward, with support, would be
very willing to collaborate with local businesses, food
banks/hubs, food business networking and directory to
facilitate knowledge sharing. Help with grant funding,
electricity, electric vehicle help etc.

Conclusion

SoFood have already implemented various sustainable
practices as listed on the previous page. They have
embraced compostable packaging, energy efficiency
measures, waste management strategies, and
sustainable utensils. However, financial constraints limit
their ability to implement further sustainable initiatives.
They would happily collaborate with other local
businesses and look to measure their environmental
impact going forward.

Page 21



Mildtech

O V E R V I E W

Mildtech - A Sustainable Drying Technology Initiative
https://mildtech.co.uk/

Georgios Vanezi – Co-Founder
Contact Info

01952 263338
info@mildtech.co.uk

Unit E2, Halesfield 5, Telford, UK, TF7 4QJ

This case study explores the
initiatives and projects undertaken
by Mildtech an innovative
company,based in T&W, focused on
making a positive change in the
food industry. The company is
developing a groundbreaking
drying technology aimed at
preserving food while maintaining
its nutritional value and reducing
waste. This case study examines
the scope of the project, its goals,
challenges faced, collaborations,
environmental sustainability efforts,
and potential impact on public
health.

Georgios has been working on this technology for around 10
years. Mildtech aims to build a large-scale machine capable of
drying 250 kilograms of food per hour. The innovative
technology uses low temperatures and vacuum processing to
retain the organoleptic and constitutional properties of the
food. By leveraging solid-state power generators, the system
consumes minimal electricity, making it highly efficient. The
project aims to process large quantities of food, both for drying
and cooking, without the need for preservatives, thereby
improving food quality and reducing waste. The biggest
machine Mildtech have now can do about 30 to 40 kilos per
hour. To give an idea freeze drying takes two to three days and
causes about 15 to 20% of nutrients disappear, which is still the
best in the market. The Mildtech method will do the same in two
to three hours rather than two to three days. It also saves more
nutrients than they do because the process doesn't destroy any
nutrients.

Objectives and Goals:
The primary objective of the project is to
revolutionise the food drying process by
developing a large machine that can
efficiently process significant quantities of
food. The goals include:
a. Ensuring food preservation: The technology
allows for drying and cooking foods without
the use of preservatives, maintaining their
nutritional value and quality for extended
periods.
b. Reducing energy consumption: The project
aims to save up to 80% of energy compared
to traditional cooking and drying methods.
c. Minimising food waste: By providing a
solution to process and preserve food, the
project aims could also be extended to
reducing food waste and supporting
initiatives such as food banks, producer glut
etc.
d. Improving public health: The technology's
ability to retain nutrients and enhance the
quality of dried and cooked food products
has the potential to positively impact public
health by providing nutritious dried
ingredients.

Environmental Sustainability Efforts:
The project aligns with environmental sustainability objectives by
promoting efficient energy consumption and waste reduction. The
technology significantly reduces energy requirements, saving up to
80% compared to conventional cooking and drying methods.
Additionally, the project has the potential to repurpose biomass
waste, such as sludge from paper recycling and plastic waste, by
drying them to the right moisture content for various applications.
The company is exploring partnerships with waste management
companies to further optimise resource utilisation. Mildtech
technology uses Radio Frequency heating.

Page 22



C O L L A B O R A T I O N S  A N D
P A R T N E R S H I P S :

Project Development and Challenges:
The project has undergone a
decade-long development process,
starting with the FP7 program from
Horizon 2014-2012. The company
initially created a prototype machine
and later received a grant from
Horizon 2020 for the second phase of
the project. The challenges faced
during development include financial
constraints and disruptions caused
by the COVID-19 pandemic, such as
supply chain issues. Additionally,
integrating off-the-shelf power
generators into the machines
required significant adaptation,
prompting the company to develop
their own patented components.

The company has collaborated with Harper Adams
University to conduct analysis and research on the
nutritional benefits of their drying technology. They have
also engaged with local businesses, conducting
experiments, and providing quotes for their machines to
companies specialising in food processing. Requests for
quotes have even been received from companies in the
United States and India. The company is actively
seeking collaborations and partnerships to expand its
market presence. Innovate UK, as part of UK Research
and Innovation, have offered Mildtech UK Ltd a grant for
their recent project as part of the 'Better Food for All:
Innovation for improved nutrition' competition.

Mildtech UK Ltd and Harper Adams University are
collaborating on this project to design and build a
higher capacity dehydration machine, testing key
materials commonly used in dehydration for
nutraceuticals to rapidly scale to commercialisation
and are keen to drive work forward with new technology
which will be game-changing for the food and
nutraceutical industry.

Communication and Awareness:
The company primarily communicates its
goals and successes through LinkedIn and
various professional groups and networks.
They are upgrading their website to improve
online presence and recently invested in
marketing initiatives. Hoping to actively
participate in industry groups and
collaborations, the company aims to raise
awareness about their innovative
technology and foster interest from
potential customers and partners.

Future Contributions:
The potential contributions that could be
made by Mildtech include addressing the
issue of nutrient-deficient diets, combating
obesity, and supporting good food for all.
Tackling food waste and glut.
Collaborations. Food bank partnership.

Needs, requirements and wishes:
Although they have InnovateUK grant, it is
limited to what monies can be spent on.
Any help with finding smaller grants to
allow more collaboration locally, small
pieces of equipment e.g., hydroponics
unit.
Knowledge exchange, local food business
networking, advice on electricity usage.

The FP7 programme ran for seven
years - from 2007 to 2013 - with a
budget totalling over 55 billion
Euros. PRESS RELEASE

Page 23

https://www.linkedin.com/company/mildtech/
https://erc.europa.eu/sites/default/files/press_release/files/press_release_adg2013_results.pdf


Odd Pals

Matt and Wioleta want to offer high-quality,
sustainable food options to the local community as
part of the food court within Wellington Market. Odd
Pals aims to create a positive change by sourcing as
many ingredients as possible locally, reducing waste,
providing tasty, healthy food. Matt also strives to
support other small local enterprises and foster
community collaborations and food education. 

O V E R V I E W

C U R R E N T  S U S T A I N A B L E
P R A C T I C E S

Odd Pals is a small local catering
business based in Wellington Market,  
Matt, founder and co-owner,
embarked on this venture with a
passion for providing good food,
having worked in various catering
kitchens, they wanted to start out on
their own. The business is committed
to sourcing locally and sustainably,
collaborating with other small
businesses in the market, and
minimising food waste. This case
study explores the motivations
behind starting the business, the
challenges faced in the pursuit of
sustainability, and the potential for
further collaboration and impact.

Matt highlights the benefit of having access to a nearby
market, reducing transportation emissions and ensuring
fresher produce. The business prioritises sourcing its
ingredients from local markets and farms, reducing food
miles and supporting the regional economy. By
purchasing fresh produce from nearby vendors, the
project aims to minimize its carbon footprint and
promote a sustainable food system. However, there are
certain ingredients that cannot be purchased locally and
he isn't always able to know the origins of the food
purchased within the market itself. Matts background in
cooking, combined with his upbringing focused on
budgeting and resourcefulness, formed the foundation of
the business's sustainable ethos. 

W E L L I N G T O N  M A R K E T
1 1  M A R K E T  S T R E E T

T E L F O R D
S H R O P S H I R E

T F 1  1 D T

Page 24



ODDPALS PRESS

Matt expressed a desire for more financial resources
to implement further sustainability practices. While
the business aims to be as sustainable as possible,
financial constraints often limit the investment
required to make significant changes. This includes
purchasing more environmentally friendly equipment,
expanding waste reduction efforts, and exploring new
ways to source ingredients sustainably.
Matt would like to have access to a community
platform that connects local businesses, producers,
and caterers. It could facilitate sharing surplus
produce, collaboration opportunities, and potential
partnerships, making it easier for small businesses to
support each other and reduce waste.
Matt & Wioleta would love to grow more produce and
incorporate this within the menu.

Collaboration with Pride in our High Street has been
essential in setting up the business. Since opening
Odd Pals has collaborated with Park Street Kitchen,
been involved in Late Night Markets and has plans to
work with Wellington Cricket Club, demonstrating a
commitment to supporting and promoting local
partnerships.

C O L L A B O R A T I O N S  A N D
P A R T N E R S H I P S

N E E D S ,  R E Q U I R E M E N T S
A N D  W I S H E S

C H A L L E N G E S  A N D  F I N A N C I A L
R E S T R A I N T S

BBC Radio Shropshire 
https://www.bbc.co.uk/
sounds/play/p0fr707s

Matt aims to be sustainable and environmentally
friendly, but faces challenges in sourcing eco-friendly
products and ingredients at affordable prices. Being
sustainable requires investment in equipment and
sourcing practices, which is difficult with limited
resources, especially for catering equipment. The
business has collaborated with local entities, such as
the Councils Pride in our High Street and other
businesses, to set up the venture. However, there is a
desire for more collaborations with local producers
and suppliers. A lack of formal platforms or directories
for grants, sustainability advice and monitoring etc 
For a young independent business financial constraints
mean implementing sustainability measures can be
costly. Balancing the need to invest in sustainable
practices with the immediate financial requirements of
the business, and paying themselves, can be
challenging.
Matt emphasises the importance of educating
customers and the community about sustainability,
food waste reduction, and proper food storage, he
hopes that in the future he will be able to do this as
part of his business. Some customers may not fully
appreciate the value of sustainable practices, local
sourcing, and reducing food waste. Overcoming the
perception that sustainable products and ingredients
are more expensive or less appealing can be a
challenge. 
Limited Time and Resources: Matt faces time
constraints in sourcing ingredients, managing the
business, and implementing sustainable practices.
Time and resource management is demanding and
giving time to "reaching Net Zero" isn't always a priority,
even though Matt does as much as he can. Unaware of
Cool Shropshire & Telford.
Need for Community Support: To overcome financial
constraints and implement more sustainable practices,
small businesses need support from the local
community, including customers and potential
partners.

Odd Pals is an inspiring example of a small local
catering business dedicated to environmental
sustainability and community collaboration. Despite
financial challenges, Matt & Wioleta remain
committed to learning, collaborating, and making
informed choices to promote sustainability. The
potential for future partnerships and a shared
commitment to a more sustainable food future
underscores the positive impact a young businesses
can have on local communities and the environment.
By nurturing these partnerships and giving owners like
Matt & Wioleta a voice it sets an excellent example for
other businesses aspiring to create positive impacts
on their communities and the environment.

C O N C L U S I O N

Page 25

https://www.shropshirestar.com/news/local-hubs/telford/wellington/2023/05/24/telford-couple-celebrate-world-food-and-local-produce-at-new-street-food-stall/
https://www.bbc.co.uk/sounds/play/p0fr707s
https://www.bbc.co.uk/sounds/play/p0fr707s


1. Offering a box return program where customers can bring back empty boxes to be refil led,
reducing waste.
2. Using recyclable and biodegradable packaging materials to minimize environmental impact.
3. Sourcing ingredients from local producers and farmers to reduce carbon emissions associated
with transportation.
4. Avoiding ingredients that are linked to unethical practices, such as chocolate from sources with
child labour issues.

G O A L S  &  C O L L A B O R A T I O N S
Natalies goals continue to be producing high-quality
chocolates using natural ingredients and avoiding
artificial additives. Always seeking out more
sustainable and ethical ingredients.
Supporting local producers, farmers, and businesses
by sourcing ingredients locally where possible.
Building relationships with other businesses to foster
growth and support each other. Choc Tillys current  
collabortions include Moonshine & Fuggles, Little
Green Pantry, Laura's Delicious Dairy

O V E R V I E W

C U R R E N T  S U S T A I N A B L E  P R A C T I C E S

Choc Tilly is a small independent
chocolate shop located in MAWS,
Jackfield. The owner, Natalie, is
passionate about producing high-
quality chocolates while promoting
ethical practices and supporting local
businesses. The shops (recently opened
another premises including café in Much
Wenlock) offer a variety of artisanal
chocolates, workshops & local ice-
cream. Natalie is Internationally Trained,
by world-renowned chocolatiers and
patisserie chefs including Melissa
Coppel (USA), Julie Sharp (UK), Clare
England (UK), Alexander Bordeaux
(Belgium), Ramon Morató (Spain) &
Olivier Fernandez (Spain).

Natalie (Tilly) and I had an in depth conversation
covering lots of topics, including supporting local
businesses, including a small dairy farm that makes
ice cream. About her commitment to using natural
ingredients and avoiding products that contribute
to child labour, we also spoke about her extensive
training enabling her to provide quality vegan
options without using synthetic additives. We
touched on efforts to reduce waste, recycle
packaging, and work with local suppliers. The
conversation also touched on the challenges of
sustainability for small businesses and the desire
for more information and support in this area. The  
idea of collaborating with other businesses and
organising events like a Farmers Markets/Christmas
fair, but facing restrictions within MAWS.

Choc Tilly
U N I T  C 1 5 ,  M A W S  C R A F T  C E N T R E

J A C K F I E L D ,  E N G L A N D  T F 8 7 L S
0 1 9 5 2  3 2 4 3 7 3

H E L L O @ C H O C T I L L Y . C O . U K

Page 26

https://www.moonshineandfuggles.com/
https://www.thelittlegreenpantry.co.uk/
https://www.thelittlegreenpantry.co.uk/
https://www.laurasdeliciousdairy.co.uk/


N E E D S ,  R E Q U I R E M E N T S  &
W I S H E S
Tilly expresses a desire for more support and
information on sustainable practices as a small
business owner. She values environmentally friendly
options, such as LED lighting and composting areas
for food waste, but might need assistance to
implement them cost-effectively.
While she's aware of the importance of being
environmentally conscious, Tilly acknowledges that
some sustainable options can be more expensive. She
wishes there were more accessible grants or
programs that could help small businesses transition
to eco-friendly practices without compromising their
financial stability.

Lack of awareness about available resources:
Natalie mentioned that as a small business owner,
they are not aware of all the resources and grants
available to support sustainability and
environmental initiatives. She expressed an interest
in learning more about initiatives like "Cool
Shropshire and Telford" and other grants to improve
their business practices.

Limited cooperation among local businesses: There
might be some divisions or conflicts among local
businesses, which could hinder collaboration and
joint efforts for sustainability. There are instances
where certain limitations or regulations imposed on
them might not be equitable compared to other
businesses in the area. This applies specifically to
MAWS.

Unique challenges of sustainability for a small
business: We discussed the difficulty of maintaining
sustainable practices as a small business due to
financial constraints. Facing decisions about using
more expensive, environmentally friendly materials
or cheaper, less sustainable alternatives.

Balancing ethics and business viability: The
struggles with making decisions that align with their
ethical values, such as supporting local businesses
and using ethically sourced ingredients, while also
trying to maintain profitability.

Lack of awareness about sustainable practices:
Information about sustainable practices for
businesses is not readily available, Natalie
expressed interest in learning more about ways to
reduce their carbon footprint and become more
environmentally friendly.

Restrictions on selling certain products: Restrictions
on selling certain products like cookies and
brownies made with unique ingredients, which
impacts their ability to diversify their offerings and
increase revenue. MAWS specific.

Desire for local collaboration: Despite the
challenges, Natalie would love to collaborate with
other local businesses and participate in events like
Christmas fairs, potentially showcasing each other's
products and supporting the community. Also, being
part of a wider food community.

C O N C L U S I O N
Choc Tilly demonstrates the dedication of a small
business owner to produce high-quality produce
while maintaining ethical and sustainable principles.
The shop's focus on collaboration, supporting local
producers, and reducing environmental impact
demonstrates a commitment to the local community
and the planet. By exploring opportunities for grants,
partnerships, and initiatives like SGFP, Choc Tilly can
continue to grow as a sustainable and thriving
business.

C H A L L E N G E S  &  F I N A C I A L  R E S T R A I N T S

Page 27



STUDENT-LED FOOD WASTE NETWORK
CLAIRE MUNIANO 

CMUNIANO@HARPER-ADAMS.AC.UK

HARPER ADAMS UNIVERSITY

O V E R V I E W

B E N E F I T S

An ongoing project summarised by this
Case Study. 

Problem: Food waste is a major
problem worldwide, and it is estimated
that one-third of all food produced for
human consumption is wasted. In the
United Kingdom, this equates to
approximately 15 million tonnes of food
per year.

Solution: A student-led food waste
network could help to reduce food
waste by connecting students with
surplus food from local businesses and
farms. Students could then use this
food to cook meals, host events, or
donate it to food banks.

A group has been formed with representatives from
HAU university, including catering, FLAM, Student Union
and Student Services alongside Shropshire Good Food
Partnership. The group will tackle the subject of food
waste and food gleaning and whether there is a
possibility to engage students and also include these
topics within the curriculum going forward.

A student-led food waste network would have a
number of benefits, including:
• Reducing food waste
• Educating students about food waste and
sustainability
• Providing students with opportunities to learn
new skills, such as cooking and food preservation
• Giving students a sense of community and
purpose

Conclusion: A student-led food waste network is a
feasible and sustainable way to reduce food
waste. By connecting students with surplus food,
this network could help to educate students about
food waste and sustainability, provide them with
new skills, and give them a sense of community
and purpose.

There are a number of challenges that would need
to be addressed in order to create a successful
student-led food waste network, including:
• Finding a way to source surplus food from local
businesses and farms
• Educating students about food waste and
sustainability
• Providing students with the skills and resources
they need to cook and use surplus food
• Overcoming logistical challenges, such as
transportation and storage

C H A L L E N G E S
C O N C L U S I O N

The next steps in creating a student-led
food waste network would be to:
• Form a steering committee of students,
faculty, and staff who are interested in the
project.
• Develop a plan for sourcing surplus food,
educating students, and providing them
with the skills and resources they need to
cook and use surplus food.
• Identify a central location where students
can cook and use surplus food.
• Develop a system for transporting and
storing surplus food.
• Start implementing the plan and tracking
the project's progress.

N E X T  S T E P S

The following recommendations would help to increase
the chances of success for a student-led food waste
network:
• Partner with local businesses and farms to source
surplus food.
• Develop educational resources about food waste and
sustainability for students.
• Provide students with cooking classes and workshops.
• Create a central location where students can cook and
use surplus food.
• Develop a system for transporting and storing surplus
food.

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S

Page 28



DAVID NUTTAL 
CATERING DIRECTOR

HARPER ADAMS UNIVERSITY

G O A L S  &
C O L L A B O R A T I O N S

The university faced financial setbacks during the
COVID pandemic, resulting in a need to focus on
revenue generation. Despite this, there is a growing
drive to incorporate sustainable practices into the
university's operations, particularly in the areas of
sustainable food sourcing and farming. The new line
manager is supportive of sustainability initiatives, but
time constraints have limited in-depth discussions
about specific projects.

O B J E C T I V E S

O P P O R T U N I T I E S  &  F U T U R E
P R O S P E C T S

This case study focuses on Harper
Adams University's efforts to implement
sustainability initiatives in its catering
department and catering outlets. The
university aims to reduce its
environmental impact, support local
communities, and promote sustainable
food practices. The main initiative is
the Returnable Cup Scheme, this is in
the process of being reviewed.
However, due to financial challenges
post-COVID, sustainability has taken a
backseat, and the university seeks to
strike a balance between financial
viability and environmental
responsibility.

The Returnable Cup Scheme

The Returnable Cup Scheme is the
primary sustainability initiative the
university is pushing forward. The goal
was to reduce single-use plastic waste by
introducing reusable cups for beverages.
However, the scheme faces challenges as
the cups are not cashless, making it
difficult to motivate people to return the
cups. This has led to a decrease in cup
returns, with many ending up in bins
rather than being returned.

The university, through David Nuttal, actively
engages in knowledge exchange and collaboration
with other universities and organisations through
TUCO which promotes joint purchasing for
increased buying power and profitability.
Sustainability initiatives, such as reducing plastic
use through reusable milk churns and sharing best
practices, have been successful outcomes of these
collaborations. There is more to be done.

While the university faces challenges in terms of
manpower and funding, it acknowledges various
opportunities for further sustainability initiatives.
For instance, collaborating with local food
producers and adopting more sustainable
practices like using surplus food and
establishing a farm shop on campus.
Additionally, student projects and research are
proving beneficial in exploring innovative
solutions, such as 3D printing reusable 3D
printer cartridges from recycled plastic.
Page 29



S U S T A I N A B I L I T Y  F O O D
P O L I C Y  

The university's sustainability journey reflects the delicate balance between financial viability
and environmental responsibility. While the Returnable Cup Scheme remains a priority, it is
essential to consider collaboration with external partners and student-led projects to drive
sustainable practices further. David acknowledges and supports the need for greater
manpower and financial support to fully implement its sustainability initiatives. Despite
challenges, there is an eagerness to explore opportunities and continue building a more
sustainable future for the institution. David would be happy to share best practice and sit
within a wider “food” community.

C O N C L U S I O N

Useful Links

INVESTIGATING THE IMPACT OF
MANDATORY REUSABLE DRINK CUPS
SCHEME AT HARPER ADAMS
UNIVERSITY
(Link to HRP Study)

https://www.harper-
adams.ac.uk/university-life/our-
university/sustainability/481/what
-were-doing-to-be-sustainable

https://www.tuco.ac.uk/procurem
ent/sustainability 

https://www.harper-
adams.ac.uk/news/203479/two-
national-shortlistings-for-
catering-department

"When I first got here, we didn't use any of the produce. Now
we are at the stage where we use all the beef, pork lamb,
sausages and cured meats."  HAU are unable to use produce
like vegetables and grain, due to the nature of the university
being a teaching hub where trials are carried out. The milk
and dairy unit at HAU is big, they generate in one day, enough
milk to keep the HAU catering side of the business going for a
whole year. They have a contract with Mueller. David says "We
would love to make our own cheese etc, but we don't have
the pasteurising capabilities or someone to manage the
cheesemaking."

Having the manpower to to to be able to implement the
ideas is probably the biggest challenge. Financial
implications of, the price  of food, staff costs have also gone
up three times this year, which is great for the employees
but it really hits the bottom line. In my time we've always
returned money back to institution. This year we might not
do because of food prices. The university is still coming out
of COVID, with quite a bit of homeworking on the academic
side. With less bodies on campus, food prices have gone up.
Staff prices have gone up. It's almost like a perfect storm
and also the cost of living crisis, that's a massive challenge
for us.”

As with all institutions the process for implementing new
ideas is long and detailed, often hampered by the lack of
resources. Sustainability within the department needs to be
one job, not an aspect of a broader job description. 

W E  A L S O  S P O K E  O F  T H E
C H A L L E N G E S

D A V I D  S P O K E  A B O U T  S O M E
O F  T H E  P O S I T I V E  S T E P S
A N D  W H Y  S O M E  P O T E N T I A L
A R E A S  A R E  N O T
I M P L E M E N T E D

Page 30

https://www.tuco.ac.uk/procurement/sustainability
https://www.harper-adams.ac.uk/documents/Sustainability-Food-Policy.pdf
https://www.harper-adams.ac.uk/documents/Sustainability-Food-Policy.pdf
https://www.harper-adams.ac.uk/documents/Sustainability-Food-Policy.pdf


1.Packaging:The business emphasises plastic reduction,
using cardboard boxes and recycled paper bags for its
products. This initiative aims to reduce single-use
plastics and promote eco-friendly packaging
alternatives. The ink used to print (done in house) is
non-toxic. Derek has also communicated with suppliers
regarding the use of cellophanes etc.
2.Refill Programs: The business is considering
introducing a refill program where customers can bring
their own bottles to be refilled, reducing the need for
new glassware and minimizing waste. (please see next
page)
3.Local Sourcing; Moonshine & Fuggles strives to source
ingredients locally, thereby minimising food miles and
supporting local producers/retailers.

Moonshine and Fuggles is a family
run business based in Ironbridge.
The business is founded on a 'True
Love' of Gin, Whisky, Rum and
Local Ales.

The business was founded by a
local entrepreneur who has
always been passionate about
sustainability and responsible
practices

Moonshine & Fuggles

G O A L S  &
C O L L A B O R A T I O N S

Moonshine & Fuggles is a small artisanal distillery and
retail business with a focus on producing high-quality
spirits and beverages. The business is committed to
sustainable practices while facing financial
challenges common to small enterprises. Derek has
worked in senior roles for large corporate retailers
previously and brings with him a wealth of knowledge.

*

O V E R V I E W
A T  A  G L A N C E

C U R R E N T  S U S T A I N A B L E
P R A C T I C E S

Collaboration is seen as a pivotal tool for
addressing both sustainability and financial
challenges for Derek, owner of Moonshine & Fuggles
He collaborates on a regular basis with other local
businesses. Including Suris Kitchen for Gin & Thai
evening, a local wood turner who makes bottle
openers, Broseley Bees, Choc Tilly, Shropshire Lad
(Rum) as well as supporting local charities via
events and sales of their own branded, locally
sourced/produced gins. Moonshine & Fuggles have
also worked with Pride in Our Highstreet

Examples of social media posts communicating
efforts made. They have now engaged a freelance
social media manager on a part-time basis. 

6  T H E  S Q U A R E ,
I R O N B R I D G E ,
S H R O P S H I R E ,

T F 8  7 A Q .
0 1 9 5 2  4 3 3 6 2 6

M A Z D E K @ M O O N S H I N E A N D F U G G L E S . C O M

Page 31



I NSTAGRAM POST  -  M&F  G I N
SUPPORT I NG  LOCAL  CHAR I TY .C H A L L E N G E S  &

F I N A C I A L
C O N S T R A I N T S

N E E D S ,  R E Q U I R E M E N T S  &
W I S H E S

C O N C L U S I O N

The small nature of Moonshine & Fuggles, along
with the realities of the drink industry, presents
certain financial challenges, including:
Cost of Goods - The business faces cost
pressures from suppliers and increased
production costs, impacting margins.
Fluctuating prices and rising costs, particularly
in the face of government regulations and
duties, necessitate careful financial planning.
Limited Margins - The competitive landscape of
the spirits industry often means limited profit
margins for businesses. This challenge forces
the company to find creative ways to balance
quality and affordability without compromising
sustainability efforts.
Balancing Values with Profit- Moonshine &
Fuggles places value-driven practices at the
core of its operations. However, maintaining
these values while also ensuring the business
remains profitable requires a delicate balance.

Derek mentions that “rising costs of goods,
unpredictable supply chains, and increasing
government duties are challenging”. While they
have managed to adapt and find solutions,
these challenges emphasise the need for
businesses to remain agile and resourceful.

Moonshine & Fuggles aims to continue refining its
sustainability efforts while addressing the financial
challenges that come with being a small business.
Derek expresses the need for a collaborative platform
where local businesses can share knowledge, ideas,
and solutions. 

A review of the support offered to small businesses in
not only reaching sustainability goals/net zero, but
running a sustainable businesses, would be welcome.
The provision of online webinars by experts is all good
but mentoring, centralised information hubs &
knowledge sharing would be more beneficial. Often
there are only 1-2 people attending the events.

“It's very difficult to get everybody together because
the word trust isn't there. I think the challenge that
local authority has, along with big government is that
the general community don’t trust the local leader
don't trust locals and don't trust leadership. I mean, I
have to trust them because it's so much better.”

Derek is very pro-active within the community but has
found some difficulties with positive communication

Moonshine & Fuggles' case exemplifies the complex
interplay between sustainability and financial challenges
in the food and drink industry. While the business has
made strides in adopting eco-friendly practices, it also
faces the realities of a competitive marketplace.
Collaboration, education, and ongoing innovation are key
to addressing these challenges and building a stronger,
more sustainable local food economy.
Derek would happily take a role in bringing together local
enterprises within a forum and sharing knowledge gained
from years of business expereince.

Since we sat down for our chat, Derek
has launched the refil scheme for one
of their own brand gins. Click for the

Instagram post.

Page 32

https://www.instagram.com/reel/CvMr-JoNZNH/?utm_source=ig_web_copy_link&igshid=MzRlODBiNWFlZA%3D%3D
https://www.instagram.com/p/CxxRllzOrAl/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CxxRllzOrAl/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CxxRllzOrAl/


This case study looks into the
inspiring journey of Park Street
Kitchen, a local food business that
has successfully integrated
sustainability practices into its
operations within a vibrant market
setting. By embracing eco-friendly
packaging, supporting local
producers, and engaging in
community collaborations, Park
Street Kitchen sets a fantastic
example of how businesses can
balance a sustainable business with
environmental and social
responsibility.

G O A L S  &
C O L L A B O R A T I O N S

PSK is a modern Caribbean street food stop that specialises
in bringing you delicious, healthy eat-in and take-away meals
using a variety of fresh, quality ingredients.
Based on Market Street, Wellington (having moved from
inside the market itself)offering a pre-order, collection and
delivery service. You can also pop by and eat-in the little
cafe. Emma launched her business from home.

Everything is prepared with great taste in mind.
As well as a focus on including fresh ingredients with
nutritional value, we also provide an extensive vegan menu
and cater well to a gluten free diet. 

O V E R V I E WA T  A  G L A N C E

Park Street Kitchen has ambitious goals:

Sustainability Tracking: The business seeks tools to accurately
calculate and track its carbon footprint. This data is pivotal for
setting meaningful sustainability objectives and gauging
progress.

Marketwide Sustainable Practices: The business envisions a
marketwide initiative for sustainable practices, driving waste
reduction, composting, and innovative packaging strategies
through collaborative efforts.

Educational Outreach: Expanding on its current efforts, the
business intends to offer workshops and educational sessions,
empowering consumers with knowledge to make informed
sustainable choices.
 
Collaboration with fellow market traders has sparked
discussions about collective bulk purchasing of sustainable
packaging materials. This collective approach significantly
reduces costs while propagating sustainable practices
throughout the market. Emma knows that more can be done
but some sort of coordination needs to be instegated.

Park Street Kitchen
9  M A R K E T  S T R E E T .  W E L L I N G T O N .

T E L F O R D .  
S H R O P S H I R E  

T F 1  1 D T

Page 33



Support for Calculating Carbon Footprint:
Emma expressed the need for assistance in
calculating her business's carbon footprint. She
recognised the importance of understanding the
environmental impact of her operations and sought
tools or resources that could help her quantify her
carbon emissions. 
Access to Sustainability Resources:
Emma acknowledged the importance of staying
informed about sustainability initiatives and
opportunities. She expressed interest in having access
to resources that could assist her in implementing
additional sustainable practices. 
Waste Management Solutions: 
Emma recognised the potential for better waste
management practices within her market. She
identified the need for composting initiatives and
hoped for support in establishing systems for efficient
waste disposal and repurposing.

C H A L L E N G E S  &  F I N A C I A L
C O N S T R A I N T S

N E E D S ,  R E Q U I R E M E N T S  &
W I S H E S

C O N C L U S I O N
Emma's journey with Park Street Kitchen exemplifies
the power of individual commitment to
sustainability within the food industry. Through her
choices in packaging, sourcing, collaboration, and
education, she has demonstrated that even small
businesses can make a significant positive impact
on the environment. Despite financial challenges,
and business growth her dedication to sustainable
practices has not only attracted conscious
consumers but also fostered partnerships within
her community. By identifying her needs and wants
for support, Emma is poised to further enhance her
business's sustainability efforts and contribute to a
greener future. Emma supports further
collaboration within Wellington Market and would
welcome a more joined up approach to reaching
food sustainability as part of the wider T&W
community 

PARK STREET KITCHEN OFFERS REFILLS. RETURN YOUR
EMPTY JAR ON DELIVERY OF YOUR NEW JAR YOU WILL
RECEIVE A £1 DISCOUNT.

1Cost Considerations:
The adoption of eco-friendly practices came with
higher upfront costs. Over time, the growing
demand for sustainable options has helped bridge
the cost gap, reflecting evolving consumer
preferences.

Supply Chain Limitations:
While local sourcing is a priority, certain ingredients
that are not regionally available must be sourced
from farther afield, resulting in transportation-
related emissions and challenges in achieving a
completely local supply chain.

Carbon Footprint Calculation: 
A key challenge lies in accurately measuring the
business's carbon footprint. Despite robust
sustainability efforts, the lack of accurate data
hinders progress tracking and goal setting.

Page 34



This case study centers around Chatham's
Organic Dairy, near Shifnal. This award-
winning organic farm has prioritised
sustainable and ethical practices in the
production of organic milk. Chatham's
Organic Dairy is particularly noteworthy for
pioneering the use of a milk vending machine,
providing the local community with direct
access to fresh, at source organic milk, all
while minimising environmental impact.

Chatham's Organic Dairy is a family-run farm
in Shropshire that has made a significant
transition to organic farming methods. This
case study explores the farm's journey toward
sustainability, their collaborations with local
businesses, their environmental efforts,
challenges faced, financial constraints, and
their aspirations for a more sustainable
future.

“Our skills and love of sustainable farming have been
passed down over three generations and we continue to
strive to ensure that everything works together in harmony
on the farm today and for generations to come.
When it comes to our ladies only the best will do. We don’t
use GM feeds here on the farm and the herd have the
freedom to ‘mooooch’ and graze on lush pastures free from
artificial fertilisers, herbicides and pesticides for up to 10
months of the year. In bad weather they relax in
comfortable, spacious housing with lots of fresh straw. Our
ladies are generally healthier due to our high standards of
care and gentle farming techniques. This means we don’t
use antibiotics routinely – in fact we use them very rarely. 
Looking after our land organically also helps conserve
biodiversity, which is great news for all the other wildlife and
mini-beasts that make their homes on the farm. Our
philosophy is that the chain of healthy soil produces
healthier cows and healthier products. The grass-based,
diet of our happy herd means our milk has lots of good stuff
in it including omega 3 fatty acids. It’s also a great source of
calcium and lots of natural minerals and vitamins. Good
news all round!”

O V E R V I E W  F R O M  W E B S I T EA T  A  G L A N C E

Organic Farming: The farm adhere to stringent organic
farming practices, eschewing synthetic chemicals and
genetically modified organisms. This commitment
ensures soil health, biodiversity, and animal welfare,
setting a foundation for sustainable milk production.
Local Supply Chain: By installing a milk vending machine
on-site, Chatham's Organic Dairy eliminates the need for
transportation and the associated food miles. This not only
reduces carbon emissions but also supports the local
economy. Excess milk is collected by OMSCO
Reusable Glass Bottles: Customers at the farm can fill up
on fresh milk using reusable glass bottles, minimising
single-use plastic waste and contributing to a circular
economy.
Transparency: Chatham's Organic Dairy prioritises
transparency. Customers have the opportunity to witness
the production process and understand precisely where
and how their milk is sourced and processed.

C U R R E N T  S U S T A I N A B L E
P R A C T I C E S

The decision to shift to organic farming was primarily motivated
by concerns about the negative impacts of conventional farming
practices, such as pesticide use. . Chatham's Organic Dairy
initiated the conversion process to organic farming in 1998,
becoming one of the pioneers in the region.

CHATHAMS
B R O C K T O N  G R A N G E

S H I F N A L ,  S H R O P S H I R E
T F 1 1  9 L Z

Page 35

https://chathamsorganicdairy.co.uk/about/
https://chathamsorganicdairy.co.uk/about/
https://omsco.co.uk/


C H A L L E N G E S  &  F I N A C I A L
C O N S T R A I N T S

N E E D S ,  R E Q U I R E M E N T S  &
W I S H E S

C O N C L U S I O N

G O A L S  &
C O L L A B O R A T I O N S

Chatham's Organic Dairy acknowledges that
financial constraints and limited resources are
common challenges faced by many businesses
when attempting to adopt sustainable practices.
The farm mentioned that grants and financial
assistance are available, but the process of
obtaining them can be time-consuming and
demanding, often requiring more manpower
than small businesses can spare.

James expressed a wish for greater collaboration and
knowledge-sharing within the local food community,
alongside a more localised support system for farmers and
growers. He agreed, that the creation of a food forum
where businesses of all sizes, from small farms to larger
enterprises, could come together to share insights,
resources, and support. James expressed the need for a
directory that provides information on available grants and
resources for sustainable initiatives.

:The farm collaborates with local businesses as a
means of creating a more connected and
sustainable food ecosystem. They supply their
organic milk to local food hampers and ice
cream producers. They also stock varied local
produce in a vending machine that sits in the
dairy. This collaborative approach fosters a
sense of community and strengthens the local
economy. James also welcomes school children
and students from HAU.

Conclusion: Chatham's Organic Dairy's journey toward sustainability highlights the challenges and opportunities faced
by businesses aiming to adopt more environmentally friendly practices. Their collaborations with local businesses,
adoption of renewable energy sources, and commitment to organic farming serve as an inspiration for others striving
to create a more sustainable food system. As they continue to overcome challenges and work toward their goals, they
underscore the importance of collaboration, knowledge-sharing, and supportive local ecosystems in building a more
sustainable future.

Chatham's Organic Dairy is interested in
measuring the impact of their sustainability
efforts, particularly those related to energy-
saving initiatives like solar panels. However, they
acknowledge that tracking impact can be
challenging due to the diverse range of
variables involved, including energy usage for
different processes.

The farm has implemented several sustainability
measures, including the installation of solar panels and
heat recovery systems. These efforts aim to reduce
energy consumption and lower the farm's carbon
footprint. Additionally, the farm has embraced grass-
based farming practices, which are inherently more
sustainable and environmentally friendly than intensive
feed-based systems. They have also actively planted
hedges to promote biodiversity and support local
ecosystems.

Page 36



This case study centers around The Little
Green Pantry, originally set up in 2019 as
a pop up market stall and partially
funded by over 100 crowdfunding
supporters, The Little Green Pantry has
now gained a strong following of eco-
minded customers and in 2021 expanded
onto the High Street in Wellington, with
the help of Telford & Wrekin Councils
Pride in Our High Street Fund.
The Little Green Pantry aims to make
sustainable plastic free shopping as
simple as possible, whilst supporting
other local Wellington businesses and
suppliers.

Keli and I met  couple of times for various
events but decided that due to the timing of
the case study it would be better to take the
time to mull over the questions rather than
have an interview. Speaking with Keri, it has
been a useful exercise in bringing together,
in one place, all of her amazing work. Keri is
a great spokesperson for what can be done.

O V E R V I E W

A T  A  G L A N C E

Plastic-Free Shopping: At my zero waste refill shop, we offer
customers a plastic-free shopping experience. We
encourage them to bring their containers and sell products
in bulk, significantly reducing plastic packaging waste and
minimizing our carbon footprint.
Sustainable Product Sourcing: I prioritise sourcing products
that align with sustainability principles. This means seeking
out local, organic, and ethically sourced goods, ensuring
that everything we offer in the shop reflects our
commitment to reducing environmental impact.
Community Engagement: My shop is deeply rooted in our
local community. I actively promote and support local
businesses, contributing to a sustainable local economy. I
also aim to inspire my customers to embrace eco-friendly
lifestyles, creating a community of environmentally
conscious individuals.
Educational Outreach: Through my presence on social
media platforms like Instagram, Facebook, TikTok, Threads,
and Twitter, I use my platform to educate and inform my
target audience about sustainable living, waste reduction,
and the importance of addressing climate change. These
educational efforts are aimed at encouraging behavioural
changes among my followers.
Long-Term Expansion: My long-term goal is to expand into
larger premises and offer plastic-free shopping options in
other towns. This expansion not only allows us to serve a
broader audience but also promotes sustainable shopping
practices in multiple communities.
Sustainability as a Priority: Above all, my shop prioritizes
caring for the planet. Profit comes second to our
commitment to the environment. This approach sets a
strong example for other businesses and emphasizes the
importance of putting sustainability at the forefront of our
operations.

C U R R E N T  S U S T A I N A B L E
P R A C T I C E S -  I N  K E L I ’ S  W O R D S

LITTLE GREEN PANTRY
T H E  L I T T L E  G R E E N  P A N T R Y

2  C R O W N  S T R E E T
W E L L I N G T O N

T E L F O R D
T F 1  1 L P

Page 37

https://chathamsorganicdairy.co.uk/about/


C H A L L E N G E S  

G O A L S  &
C O L L A B O R A T I O N S
These areas were chosen based on a combination of
personal values and market research. As someone deeply
concerned about plastic pollution and climate change, I
wanted my business to align with these values.
Market research indicated a demand for plastic-free and
sustainable shopping options in my community, reinforcing
the decision to focus on reducing plastic waste and
promoting sustainable living.
The emphasis on community engagement and support for
local businesses arose from recognising that supporting
local businesses can boost the local economy and reduce
the carbon footprint associated with long-distance product
sourcing.
The choice to use social media for educational outreach
likely reflects an understanding of its reach and influence in
shaping consumer behaviour and attitudes. It's an effective
way to spread the message of sustainability and engage
with a broader audience.

Changing Consumer Shopping Habits:

Resistance to Change: Many consumers are
accustomed to traditional shopping habits, which
often involve convenience and familiarity.
Transitioning to a zero waste refill shop requires a
shift in mindset and shopping behaviour, which
can be met with resistance or hesitation. We
overcome this hurdle by making refill shopping as
easy as possible, offering friendly and helpful staff
to guide the consumer through their shopping
journey and also by offering services such as click
and collect and free local deliveries.

Awareness and Education:

Achieving sustainable shopping habits often
requires awareness and education. Some
potential customers may not fully understand the
environmental impact of single-use plastics or
the benefits of shopping sustainably, making it
challenging to motivate them to make the switch.
Our social media presence attempts to address
this and break down those barriers.

Cost of Living Crisis:

Financial Constraints: The cost of living crisis can
put financial strain on consumers, making them
more price-sensitive when it comes to their
purchases. Sustainable products, although
environmentally friendly, may be perceived as
more expensive, potentially deterring some
customers. We have used social media and
signage in store to do price comparisons against
large supermarket chains, in order to educate the
consumer on the saving that can be made by
refill shopping.

Busy Lifestyles:

Time Constraints: Many individuals lead busy lives
with work, family commitments, and other
responsibilities. Sustainable shopping at a zero
waste refill shop may require extra time for
planning, shopping, and cleaning reusable
containers, which can be a barrier for those with
packed schedules.

Convenience Factor: Traditional grocery shopping
can be more convenient, with pre-packaged
items readily available. Zero waste shopping,
while environmentally friendly, may be perceived
as less convenient due to the need to bring
containers and weigh products. We have tried to
address this barrier with offering online ordering,
free local collection of containers and delivery as
well as a click and collect service. Page 38



F I N A C I A L
C O N S T R A I N T S

Planning is key. I've learned to anticipate trends,
seasonal fluctuations, and customer preferences. This
proactive approach ensures that we are well-prepared
to meet our customers' needs and remain relevant in the
market.
Sustainability often involves fine-tuning processes to
minimize waste and maximize efficiency. Paying
attention to the smallest details, such as packaging
choices, product placement, and energy consumption,
can have a significant impact on our environmental
footprint and overall success.
While managing day-to-day operations is crucial, it's
equally important to step back and take a holistic view
of the business. Periodically reassessing our goals,
mission, and long-term vision allows us to make
strategic adjustments and ensure we stay true to our
values.
Building and nurturing a supportive community of
customers, partners, and employees has been one of the
most rewarding aspects of this journey. Their input and
feedback have been instrumental in our growth and
improvement.
It has taught me that sustainability, careful planning, and a
strong sense of purpose can not only drive business success
but also contribute to a better future for our planet and
community. As we move forward, I remain committed to
continually evolving and making a positive impact in the
world.

L E S S O N S  L E A R N E D

Financial and resource constraints hindering my
ability to make positive change
Running a zero waste refill shop is indeed a
constant juggling act that requires careful
management and adaptation. The challenges
arise from several factors, including tight profit
margins, rising costs of stock, utilities, and staffing,
all of which make it difficult to achieve financial
growth. 
Tight Profit Margins:
Low Markup: Zero waste refill shops often operate
with lower markup margins compared to
traditional retailers. This is because the emphasis
is on affordability and sustainability, which can
limit the ability to generate substantial profits from
each sale.
Competitive Pricing: To attract and retain
customers, it's important to offer competitive
prices for sustainable products. While this benefits
consumers, it can compress profit margins for the
business.
Increasing Costs:
Stock Costs: Sourcing sustainable, organic, or
locally produced products can sometimes be
more expensive than conventional options.
Maintaining a diverse and eco-conscious
inventory can increase the overall cost of goods
sold.
Utilities: Utilities, such as electricity and water, are
essential for running a shop. As energy costs rise,
it can put additional strain on the budget.
Staffing Costs: Staffing is crucial for providing
excellent customer service and maintaining
operations. Increased labour costs, including
wages and benefits, can impact the bottom line.
Financial Growth Challenges:
Reinvestment vs. Profit: Balancing the need for
reinvestment in the business, such as expanding
to larger premises or adding new products and
services, with generating immediate profits can be
challenging. Limited profit margins may hinder the
ability to allocate funds for growth initiatives.
Financial Sustainability: Maintaining the financial
sustainability of the business while staying true to
the mission of sustainability and affordability
requires careful planning and resource allocation.
Risk Management: With tight margins and rising
costs, there is limited room for financial setbacks
or unexpected expenses, making risk
management crucial.

Plastic Landfill Diversion: 
Since its opening in 2021, The Little Green Pantry has made a
remarkable impact on reducing plastic waste. We're proud
to say that we have saved over 56,000 pieces of plastic from
ending up in landfills. This achievement is a testament to our
commitment to sustainability and our efforts to provide eco-
conscious alternatives to traditional packaging.
Our customers, who are passionate about reducing their
plastic footprint, have been instrumental in achieving this
milestone. They have embraced our sustainable shopping
approach, spreading the word and inspiring others to join
the movement.

Sales Growth: 
Over the past two and a half years, despite the challenging
economic environment, we have experienced consistent
growth in sales, averaging around 30%. This achievement not
only bucks the national trend but is surprising, especially
considering the current cost of living crisis.

E X A M P L E S  O F  M E A S U R A B L E
O U T C O M E S  O R  I M P A C T S
A C H I E V E D  T H R O U G H
I N I T I A T I V E S

Page 39



The trust has taken several steps towards
sustainability. 

They have developed an action plan with
high-level sustainability objectives, one of
which is to increase the use of local
produce by 25%. The Trust would happily
explore partnerships with local food
networks and producers should the
opportunity present itself. 

Carbon literacy awareness training for
board members, senior managers, and
relevant personnel.

Re-purposing old staff mobile phones for
customers in need within the Trust.

Education within menus and meals with
regards to changes that can be made.
 ”

Environmental Sustainability
Strategy.

G O A L S  &
C O L L A B O R A T I O N S

The Wrekin Housing Group is a socially minded
organisation that prides itself on making a difference
to people’s lives, we do this by:

Providing over 13,000 homes for affordable rent
and low cost home ownership across Shropshire,
Staffordshire and Telford & Wrekin.
Delivering innovative care solutions ranging from
domiciliary care for the elderly to supported
housing and care for adults with learning
difficulties, as well as dementia nursing care.
Channelling social investment to create jobs and
promote economic growth, generating
opportunities for people to gain employability
skills, maximising the social value of our services
and delivering wider community benefits

O V E R V I E WA T  A  G L A N C E

E M M A  R O G E R S   
S O C I A L  V A L U E  C O - O R D I N A T O R

E M A I L :  E M M A . R O G E R S @ W R E K I N . C O M   |   W E B :
W R E K I N . C O M

T E L :  0 1 9 5 2  2 1 7 2 6 1   |   M O B :  0 7 8 1 6  5 1 0 4 6 9

I  met with Emma Rogers having
discovered that they had just undertaken
Carbon Literacy Training within Wrekin
Housing Trust. Emma has ben championing
the need to improve sustainability, in her
role as Social Value Co-ordinator.
This case study briefly touches on some of
the issues being tackled, a new strategy is
being developed and there will be further
information to follow. 

C U R R E N T  S U S T A I N A B L E
P R A C T I C E S

Emma and I discussed involving the community in
sustainability efforts and have created a small
community garden at one of their residential premises,
they also engage in seed planting/growing with
youngsters, various eco- friendly competitions. The Trust
would happily look to increasing their green space
activities to improve their broader sustainability goals.

The Trust collaborate with local food share hubs for their
customers.

The team that Emma works within have developed a
comprehensive action plan, soon to be approved,
outlining high-level sustainability objectives, including a
focus on sourcing more local products.

Page 40

https://www.wrekin.com/Docs/Enviromnental_Sustainability_Strategy09.pdf
https://www.wrekin.com/Docs/Enviromnental_Sustainability_Strategy09.pdf


This case study highlights the journey of this department towards incorporating sustainability into its
operations. While they have made initial strides in awareness and goal setting, there are still challenges to
overcome. Financial constraints, staffing shortages, and the need for broader engagement pose hurdles.
However, by collaborating with local organisations and taking gradual steps towards sustainability, they aim to
achieve their objectives. This case study underscores the importance of addressing sustainability issues in a
practical, collaborative, and education-driven manner, and it serves as an example of how organisations can
navigate the path towards more sustainable practices in their operations. Being able to follow the journey of the
team as they navigate the complex landscape of sustainability,  highlighting their successes, challenges, and
strategies for engaging stakeholders and promoting sustainability initiatives would be a positive step in
understanding how outcomes can be implemented and measured. 
Ultimately, it underscores the importance of gradual, community-focused approaches to drive change in a  
setting as complex as Wrekin Housing Trust.

C H A L L E N G E S  &
F I N A C I A L
C O N S T R A I N T S

N E E D S ,  R E Q U I R E M E N T S  &
W I S H E S

C O N C L U S I O N

Throughout the conversation, we reflected
on the challenges of engaging various
stakeholders in sustainability initiatives
while emphasising the importance of taking
small, impactful steps.

The catering department faces financial
challenges related to staffing shortages,
especially with the catering manager
frequently needing to step in due to the
lack of available staff. Additionally, the cost
of sustainable practices and local sourcing
can be higher in the short term, potentially
impacting the department's budget.

We talked about customer opinions on
varying topics with the “sustainability”
heading and how there is a need for
implementation, rather than requirement
such as reframing veganism and
vegetarianism as balanced, budget-friendly
choices rather than extreme dietary
changes.

Our chat highlights the difficulty in setting
specific sustainability targets. In this case,
the teams aims to increase the use of local
produce by 25% but how to then go about
gaining clarity on what this percentage
represents.

The team's initial efforts have involved
experimenting with various sustainability
initiatives, and are making progress, but
facing challenges in charting a clear path
forward

1.Understand Local Sourcing:
Gain a deeper understanding of how local produce is
sourced, ordered, and integrated into their catering
operations.
2.Collaboration:
Collaborate with local producers and organisations like
the Shropshire Good Food Partnership and Open Food
Network. But where to start.
3.Resource Allocation:
Allocate resources to improve sustainability, potentially
by joining the Shropshire Good Food Partnership as a
business.
4.Education and Engagement: 
Educate staff and customers about sustainable practices,
offering guidance on small changes they can make in
their daily routines.
5.Waste Reduction:
Address waste reduction, both in terms of food waste and
single-use plastics.

Page 41



C R E A T I N G  A  L O C A L  F O O D  S Y S T E M  

P E O P L E ​

At the heart of a sustainable food economy are the people—producers, consumers, and
communities. By promoting sustainable practices, fostering food security, and prioritising
inclusivity, we empower individuals to make conscious choices about what they eat. Access to
nutritious, locally sourced food becomes a right, not a privilege. Education and awareness ensure
that people are informed about the impact of their food choices on their health and the well-
being of others. Collaboration, information exchange, sharing and support ensures that the  
education and awareness comes from the heart and voice of the local food economy.

ENGAGE  STAKEHOLDERS :
B r i ng  toge the r  l oca l  g rowe rs ,  p roduce rs ,  consumers ,  commun i t y  g roups ,  and  o the r  s takeho lde r s
to  co l l abo ra te  on  sus ta i nab le  f ood  i n i t i a t i ves .  I nc l ude  d i ve r se  pe r spec t i ve .  A  Food  Fo rum ,
whe re  bes t  p rac t i ce  and  know ledge  can  be  sha red  on  a  qua r te r l y  bas i s  w i t h  r ep resen ta t i on
f rom SGFP  and  T&W counc i l .  

SUPPORT  LOCAL  FARMERS  AND  PRODUCERS :
P rov ide  f i nanc ia l  i ncen t i ves ,  g ran t s  and  s ignpos t  i n fo rmat i on .  A  more  l oca l i sed  app roach
ra the r  t han  re l y i ng  on  De f ra  w i l l  improve  the  re la t i onsh ips  be tween  g rowe r  and  consumer .
C rea t i ng  a  more  f l u id  r e la t i onsh ip  can  have  no th i ng  bu t  a  pos i t i ve  ou tcome .

FOOD EDUCAT ION  AND  TRA IN ING :
I n ves t  i n  educa t i ona l  p rog rams  and  wo r kshops  to  t each  res iden t s  abou t  t he  bene f i t s  o f
sus ta i nab le  f ood  and  how  to  g row  the i r  own  food .  These  e f fo r t s  can  a l so  i nc l ude  t ra i n i ng
p rog rams  and  vo lun tee r i ng  oppo r tun i t i e s  f o r  asp i r i ng  g rowe rs  by  wo r k i ng  w i t h  pa r tne r s  such  as
HAU ,  mar ke t  ga rdene rs ,  SGFP  e tc .  U t i l i s i ng  t he  emp loyee  engagement  days  o f  The  Wrek i n
Hous ing  T rus t  f o r  t he  bene f i t  o f  improv ing  educa t i on  and  the  “G row  Loca l ”  i n i t i a t i ve  wou ld  be
an  e xamp le .  A l l  o f  t hose  i n te r v i ewed  we re  w i l l i ng  to  p rov ide  the i r  se r v i ces  fo r  “ pop  ups ”  and
demos .  Ensu re  a  p resence  a t  l oca l  even t s ,  

A W A R E N E S S  A N D  M A R K E T I N G :
L a u n c h  m a r k e t i n g  c a m p a i g n s  t o  r a i s e  a w a r e n e s s  a b o u t  t h e  b e n e f i t s  o f  l o c a l ,  s u s t a i n a b l e
f o o d .  H i g h l i g h t  s u c c e s s  s t o r i e s  f r o m  l o c a l  f a r m e r s ,  g r o w e r s  a n d  p r o d u c e r s  t o  b u i l d
c o m m u n i t y  s u p p o r t .  T e l f o r d  a n d  W r e k i n  d o e s  n o t  h a v e  t h e  b e n e f i t  o f  a  c e n t r a l i s e d  s h o p p i n g
z o n e  t h a t  s u p p o r t s  a l l  b u s i n e s s e s .  W e  a r e  a  s a t e l l i t e  b o r o u g h  w i t h  n o  r e a l  h e a r t .  

Page 42

https://chathamsorganicdairy.co.uk/about/


R E S U L T S  O F  A  S U R V E Y  S E N T
T O  T H E  C L I M A T E  C H A N G E

C H A M P I O N S ​

Page 43

https://chathamsorganicdairy.co.uk/about/


C R E A T I N G  A  L O C A L  F O O D  S Y S T E M  

P L A C E

S u s t a i n a b l e  f o o d  e c o n o m i e s  c e l e b r a t e  a n d  p r o t e c t  t h e  u n i q u e  p l a c e s  w h e r e
f o o d  i s  g r o w n  a n d  c o n s u m e d .  T h i s  i n c l u d e s  n o t  o n l y  s a f e g u a r d i n g  n a t u r a l

l a n d s c a p e s  b u t  a l s o  p r e s e r v i n g  c u l t u r a l  a n d  c u l i n a r y  t r a d i t i o n s .  L o c a l  f o o d
s y s t e m s  t h r i v e  w h e n  w e  i n v e s t  i n  r e g e n e r a t i v e  a g r i c u l t u r e ,  s u p p o r t  s m a l l -

s c a l e  f a r m e r s ,  a n d  m i n i m i z e  f o o d  m i l e s .  I n  d o i n g  s o ,  w e  c r e a t e  v i b r a n t
c o m m u n i t i e s  w h e r e  f o o d  i s  a  s o u r c e  o f  p r i d e ,  i d e n t i t y ,  a n d  c o n n e c t i o n .

C R E A T E  A  W I D E R  S U S T A I N A B L E  F O O D  P O L I C Y :
D e v e l o p  a  c l e a r  a n d  c o m p r e h e n s i v e  s u s t a i n a b l e  f o o d  p o l i c y  t h a t  o u t l i n e s  t h e  t o w n
c o u n c i l ' s  c o m m i t m e n t  t o  s u p p o r t i n g  l o c a l  f o o d  s y s t e m s .  T h i s  p o l i c y  s h o u l d  i n c l u d e
s p e c i f i c  g o a l s ,  o b j e c t i v e s ,  a n d  t i m e l i n e s .  I n v o l v i n g  l o c a l  s t a k e h o l d e r s  t h r o u g h  a
f o r u m  i s  e s s e n t i a l  a n d  w i l l  e n s u r e  a  “ b u y  i n ”  f r o m  a l l  a r e a s .

E S T A B L I S H  F A R M E R S '  M A R K E T S  A N D  F O O D  H U B S :
C r e a t e  a n d  p r o m o t e  f a r m e r s '  m a r k e t s  a n d  f o o d  h u b s  w h e r e  l o c a l  p r o d u c e r s  c a n  s e l l
t h e i r  p r o d u c t s  d i r e c t l y  t o  c o n s u m e r s .  T h e  c o u n c i l  c a n  o f f e r  l o g i s t i c a l  s u p p o r t ,
m a r k e t i n g ,  a n d  s p a c e  f o r  s u c h  i n i t i a t i v e s .  P l e a s e  s e e  l i n k s  t o  e x a m p l e  i n i t i a t i v e s .
C o s t s  t o  b e  k e p t  r e a l i s t i c ,  r e f l e c t i n g  t h e  s i z e  o f  t h o s e  a t t e n d i n g .  T h e r e  i s  a  r e q u e s t
t h a t  l o c a l  e v e n t s  a r e  s u p p o r t e d  b y  l o c a l  b u s i n e s s e s  o f f e r i n g  g o o d ,  l o c a l  f o o d .

L O C A L  F O O D  P R O C U R E M E N T  P O L I C I E S :
F o c u s  o n  i m p r o v i n g  p r o c u r e m e n t  p o l i c i e s  t h a t  p r i o r i t i s e  p u r c h a s i n g  l o c a l l y  p r o d u c e d
a n d  s u s t a i n a b l e  f o o d  f o r  c o u n c i l - o w n e d  f a c i l i t i e s ,  s c h o o l s ,  a n d  o t h e r  p u b l i c
i n s t i t u t i o n s .

C E L E B R A T E :
I n  c e l e b r a t i n g  o u r  v a l u a b l e  l o c a l  f o o d  e c o n o m y ,  t h e i r  w i n s ,  c o l l a b o r a t i o n s  a n d
e v e n t s ,  b y  b r i n g i n g  e v e r y t h i n g  t o g e t h e r  i n  o n e  d i r e c t o r y  w e  o f f e r  u p  t h o s e  c h o i c e s  t o
t h e  c o n s u m e r ,  t h e  r e s i d e n t s .  W i t h  m o r e  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  s u p p o r t ,  l e a r n  a b o u t  a n d
c o n s u m e  g o o d  l o c a l  f o o d ,  t h e y  a r e  a b l e  t o  r e d u c e  t h e  b o r o u g h s  c a r b o n  f o o t p r i n t ,
i n c r e a s e  t h e  c i r c u l a r i t y  o f  t h e  f o o d  e c o n o m y ,  r e d u c e  w a s t e  a n d  i m p r o v e  h e a l t h  a n d
w e l l b e i n g . Page 44

https://chathamsorganicdairy.co.uk/about/


C R E A T I N G  A  L O C A L  F O O D  S Y S T E M  

P L A N E T ​

T h e  h e a l t h  o f  o u r  p l a n e t  i s  i n t r i c a t e l y  l i n k e d  t o  o u r  f o o d  c h o i c e s .  A
s u s t a i n a b l e  f o o d  e c o n o m y  r e c o g n i s e s  t h e  f i n i t e  r e s o u r c e s  o f  t h e  E a r t h  a n d
s t r i v e s  t o  m i n i m i z e  w a s t e ,  r e d u c e  g r e e n h o u s e  g a s  e m i s s i o n s ,  a n d  c o n s e r v e

b i o d i v e r s i t y .  B y  e m b r a c i n g  p r a c t i c e s  s u c h  a s  o r g a n i c  f a r m i n g ,  a g r o f o r e s t r y ,
a n d  r e n e w a b l e  e n e r g y ,  w e  m i t i g a t e  t h e  e n v i r o n m e n t a l  i m p a c t s  o f  f o o d

p r o d u c t i o n .  W e  a l s o  t a c k l e  t h e  p r e s s i n g  i s s u e  o f  f o o d  w a s t e  b y  a d o p t i n g  a
c i r c u l a r  a p p r o a c h ,  w h e r e  e v e r y  p a r t  o f  t h e  f o o d  s y s t e m  i s  o p t i m i s e d ,  f r o m

f a r m  t o  f o r k .

F O O D  W A S T E  R E D U C T I O N :
D e v e l o p  s t r a t e g i e s  f o r  s m a l l  b u s i n e s s e s  t o  m i n i m i s e  f o o d  w a s t e  a t  a l l  s t a g e s  o f
t h e  f o o d  s u p p l y  c h a i n ,  f r o m  p r o d u c t i o n  t o  c o n s u m p t i o n .  E n c o u r a g e  c o m p o s t i n g
a n d  s u p p o r t  i n i t i a t i v e s  t h a t  r e d i r e c t  s u r p l u s  f o o d  t o  t h o s e  i n  n e e d .  F o o d  w a s t e
c o l l e c t i o n s  f o r  s m a l l  b u s i n e s s e s  w o u l d  b e  v e r y  w e l c o m e .

E N C O U R A G E  A N D  S U P P O R T  S U S T A I N A B L E  P R A C T I C E S :
M a k i n g  s u s t a i n a b l e  p r a c t i c e  a  k e y  e l e m e n t  f o r  g r a n t s  a n d  f u n d i n g .  F o r  e x a m p l e
w i t h i n  a  f o o d  s e t t i n g  r e c e i v i n g  a  g r a n t ,  a t  l e a s t  2 5 %  o f  f o o d  s h o u l d  b e  s o u r c e d
f r o m  l o c a l  g r o w e r s .

M E A S U R E  P R O G R E S S  A N D  A D J U S T :
E n c o u r a g e  t h e  u s e  o f  C o o l  S h r o p s h i r e  &  T e l f o r d ,  n o n e  o f  t h e  b u s i n e s s e s  w e r e
a w a r e  o f  t h i s  t o o l .
C o n t i n u o u s l y  m o n i t o r  t h e  p r o g r e s s  o f  s u s t a i n a b l e  f o o d  i n i t i a t i v e s  a n d  b e  w i l l i n g
t o  a d a p t  p o l i c i e s  a n d  s t r a t e g i e s  b a s e d  o n  o u t c o m e s  a n d  f e e d b a c k  f r o m
s t a k e h o l d e r s .

Page 45

https://chathamsorganicdairy.co.uk/about/


C R E A T I N G  A  L O C A L  F O O D  S Y S T E M  

C O N C L U S I O N

I m p r o v i n g  t h e  s u s t a i n a b l e  f o o d  e c o n o m y  f o r  l o c a l  g r o w e r s ,  p r o d u c e r s ,  f o o d
e n t e r p r i s e s  a n d  c o n s u m e r s  i s  a  t a s k  t h a t  r e q u i r e s  a  c o o r d i n a t e d  e f f o r t
f r o m  T  &  W  C o u n c i l ,  c o m m u n i t y  s t a k e h o l d e r s ,  a n d  v a r i o u s  o r g a n i s a t i o n s .  

I n  t h e  f i r s t  i n s t a n c e  t h e r e  i s  a n  o v e r w h e l m i n g  w i s h / n e e d  f o r  s o m e  s o r t  o f
f o o d  f o r u m  w h e r e  a l l  s t a k e h o l d e r s  w i t h i n  T & W  c a n  c o m e  t o g e t h e r .  M o s t  o f
t h e  e n t e r p r i s e s  t h a t  I  h a v e  s p o k e n  w i t h  a r e  n o t  c e r t a i n  o f  w h a t  t h e y  n e e d
t o  b e  w o r k i n g  t o w a r d s  a n d  w h a t  t h e  r e q u i r e m e n t s  a r e  t o  r e a c h
s u s t a i n a b i l i t y  t a r g e t s  l o c a l l y  o r  g l o b a l l y ,  w i t h  n o  r e a l  f r a m e w o r k  i n  p l a c e  t o
s t a r t  t h e  j o u r n e y ,  g a i n  k n o w l e d g e  o r  s e e k  i n f o r m a t i o n .  I n  g e n e r a l  t h o s e  I
h a v e  s p o k e n  w i t h  h a v e  n a t u r a l l y  s o u g h t  t o  s t a r t  o n  t h i s  p a t h  t h r o u g h  t h e i r
o w n  p e r s o n a l  v a l u e s  r a t h e r  t h a n  “ j u m p i n g  o n  t h e  b a n d  w a g o n ” .  C o n s i d e r i n g
t h e  c h a l l e n g e s  f a c e d ,  a  m o r e  c o h e s i v e  a p p r o a c h  n e e d s  t o  b e  d e v e l o p e d  s o
t h a t  w e  m i g h t  e n c o u r a g e  a l l  b u s i n e s s e s  w i t h i n  t h e  f o o d  s e c t o r  t o  f o l l o w
s u i t  a n d  d o  s o  w i l l i n g l y  t h r o u g h  d i s c u s s i o n ,  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  a n d  e d u c a t i o n .

M e a s u r e m e n t  i s  a n  i m p o r t a n t  f a c t o r  i n  d r i v i n g  t h e  s u c c e s s  o f  b u s i n e s s e s  i n
a c h i e v i n g  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y  a n d  r e d u c i n g / e l i m i n a t i n g  t h e i r  c o n t r i b u t i o n  t o
c l i m a t e  c h a n g e .  T h e  w i s h e s ,  g o a l s  a n d  n e e d s  e x p r e s s e d  s h o u l d  b e c o m e  a n
e a s y ,  o b j e c t i v e  a n d  m e a s u r a b l e  p l a n .  T h e s e  s h o u l d  i n c l u d e  b u t  n o t  b e
l i m i t e d  t o

E n e r g y  c o n s u m p t i o n  v a l u e s  f o r  t h e  b u s i n e s s e s .
N a t u r e  a n d  d i v e r s i t y  o f  w a s t e  s t r e a m s .
Q u a n t i t i e s  o f  d i f f e r e n t  w a s t e s  a n d  h o w  t h e y ' r e  m a n a g e d  -  t h e i r
d e s t i n a t i o n s .
C l i m a t e  c h a n g e  m i t i g a t i o n  m e a s u r e s  a l r e a d y  t a k e n .
C l i m a t e  c h a n g e  m e a s u r e s  i d e n t i f i e d  t o  b e  i m p l e m e n t e d .
S u s t a i n a b i l i t y  o b j e c t i v e s / t a r g e t s  a n d  m e a s u r e s  a l r e a d y  t a k e n .

C r e a t i n g  a  m o d e l  f o r u m ,  i n v o l v i n g  t h e  p a r t i c i p a t i n g  b u s i n e s s e s  a l o n g s i d e  a
q u a l i t a t i v e  a s s e s s m e n t  o f  t h e i r  n e e d s  w o u l d  e n s u r e  a  f u t u r e  p l a n  w o u l d  b e
f i t  f o r  p u r p o s e .  

Page 46

https://chathamsorganicdairy.co.uk/about/


Open Food Network
Slow Food Birmingham
Local to Ludlow
Os Nosh
Long Table

C O L L A B O R A T E ,
S H A R E ,  E X C H A N G E

K N O W L E D G E ,
S U P P O R T &
M E A S U R E .

Useful Links

T O  E N D . . .  O F  T H E  V E R Y  S M A L L  S E C T I O N  O F  F O O D  E N T E R P R I S E S  I
H A V E  S P O K E N  W I T H ,  T H E R E  W A S  N O T  O N E  T H A T  W A S N ’ T  W I L L I N G  T O

I M P R O V E ,  G I V E  M O R E  T I M E  A N D  E N E R G Y ,  S U P P O R T  O R  H E L P
E D U C A T E .  T H E R E  A R E  M U L T I P L E  C O L L A B O R A T I O N S  T O  B E  M A D E  A N D

F U T U R E  R E L A T I O N S H I P S  T O  B E  F O U N D E D ,  A N D  N O T  J U S T  T H E
O B V I O U S  O N E S .  B U T ,  W E  C A N N O T  A L W A Y S  R E L Y  O N  F O R W A R D

T H I N K I N G  I N D I V I D U A L S ,  B U S I N E S S  O W N E R S  &  V O L U N T E E R S  T O  M A K E
T H E  S H I F T  T H A T  I S  N E E D E D  W I T H O U T  S U P P O R T

E M M A  C A N T I L L I O N  
S G F P  C O O R D I N A T O R  -  F O O D  E C O N O M Y

G O O G L E  M A P  O F  O U R  C A S E  S T U D Y  P A R T N E R S

S U S T A I N A B L E  F O O D  E C O N O M Y  &  G R O W  L O C A L

Page 47

https://chathamsorganicdairy.co.uk/about/
https://openfoodnetwork.org.uk/
https://slowfoodbirmingham.co.uk/
https://www.localtoludlow.org.uk/
https://osnosh.co.uk/
https://www.thelongtableonline.com/


This page is intentionally left blank



GOOD FOR PEOPLE, PLACE AND PLANET

Overview

Community gardens and orchards are green spaces that provide us with
beneficial opportunities for our physical and mental wellbeing as well as species
and habitat conservation. They are places where we can grow food to nurture
ourselves and our environment. The importance of these spaces to connect with
nature is now well documented and understood. We are part of nature and need
to interact with our environment and protect it to be healthy ourselves.

Approximately 520 thousand hectares of residential gardens exist in urban areas in the
U.K. Potentially a lot of space for growing your own food. However, not every home has a
garden. Community gardens can be great social gathering places for meeting people,
sharing skills and resources. Those who do have gardens can replicate what they have
learnt at the community garden in their own garden. Those who don’t, have a way of
connecting with others and accessing all the benefits of being in a natural environment.
 

O V E R V I E W

GROW LOCAL 2023

Janine Potter-Grow Local Project Coordinator Telford & Wrekin 

Page 49



GOOD FOR PEOPLE, PLACE AND PLANET

Overview
GROW LOCAL

A CSA Model for Telford & Wrekin
If a CSA model were adopted in Telford for example it could be made up of pockets of land
within urban spaces and on urban fringes. Telford and Wrekin is largely a urban demographic
with patches of green spaces, Of these there are 306 green guarantee sites (map available
online), spaces that are protected from further development. 

An acre of land could feed around 50 families. These CSA’s are not able to grow all the food for
families all year round but they are increasing the amount of food that can be grown in this
country, to be able to feed ourselves. Many CSA veg boxes are available May - November with
the option for the small producer to ‘buy in’ from larger producers. In either situation a CSA
venue could continue to be used for other events/activities/training/wellbeing sessions inside
and outside of veg production season 

The CSA model can support families and individuals on lower incomes through sliding scale
payments and pay it forward where communities pay

“cultivating just 1% of this peri-urban land (in the U.K) for horticultural production would create
an additional 530,000 tonnes of fruit and vegetables, worth £3 billion, and around 160,000 FTE
jobs ” .www.sustainweb.org

In recent scientific research there is also an increasing understanding of the importance of a
healthy soil microbiology being linked to a healthy human gut microbiome. (Spector, T. 2022)
Intensive farming practices such as ploughing and the use of herbicides are degrading our soils
and depleting the nutrient value of our food.  

In smaller scale food production areas, like community gardens, composting, mulching and no
dig, build soil organic matter and can support a more diverse community of soil life.
Compost Club reducing food waste, recycling nutrients community gardens composting projects
to reduce food waste and recycle nutrients

This soil life affects the nutrient density of the crops we eat as the microorganisms in the soil
convert essential micronutrients into plant available forms. A plant makes phytochemicals such
as flavonoids to protect and keep itself healthy, these have health benefits for us too

 

Page 50



G
row

 Local Tim
eline

February

March

April

May

 June

July

August

September

October

SGFP started  investigating and mapping local food growing projects and
initiatives  in Telford and Wrekin.  Starting with the annual Seed Swap event
(Transition Telford/Climate Action Hub)  There were so many seeds donated
they were overflowing off the tables! Residents were keen to swap and talk

about seeds and ask questions about food growing.  BBC Shropshire covered
the event. The climate action hub provided free tools, equipment and plants. 

SGFFP was invited to Woodside Allotment for a tour around plots
and shop.

Harvest Local event at Park Lane Centre, Woodside.  SGFP took
along strawberry plants and runner bean seed pods to share with the

community and discuss seed saving and food growing.. 

.

SGFP attended Oakengates Kings Coronation event in Harthill Park- to
deliver an edible flower sowing activity. Over 60 children potted up
nasturtium seeds to take home. and played a seed identification and

composting game.

Severn Gorge Countryside held an apple pressing event at Woodside
community orchard.  SGFP attended and provided a scratter to

macerate the apples and make them easier to juice.  Met Liz and visited
Dawley community garden, proposed allotment site, orchard and

Dawley Christian Centre garden.

Met Darran at Donnington Community Orchard
Various volunteering sessions and visits throughout the month..  

SGFP attended Shropshire and Telford Women’s Alliance (STUWA)
coffee afternoon to discuss their food growing space.  Leegomery

Community garden (Transition Telford) hosted a Master Composter’s
course to promote home composting. SGFP attended to discuss the

garden’s needs and talk to residents.

SGFP spoke with MIND Telford’s Green social prescriber working  in
partnership with Madeley Court Medical Practice and Telford Crisis

Support started to develop a community food garden.  

SGFP met the Dawley Hamlets Community allotments committee and
discussed the Right to Grow motion. The group have put in a application
to Telford & Wrekin for a proposed allotment site on the closed  Phoenix

school site.  SGFP met with community garden leaders and council
members to identify community groups and gardens and their needs.

Hollinswood School invited SGFP in to discuss the
school’s sustainability practices and view their school

allotments and orchard

Page 51



Sharon said what they really need is volunteers to help them to
develop and maintain the space. While we were chatting one
such valued volunteer at the centre was taking apart pallets to
upcycle for garden projects. They hope that other people within
their community with gardening and plant knowledge will help
by mentoring others. They will be continuing to develop the
garden in Spring 2024 and those that would like to get involved
can contact Sharon at the Christian Centre. 
sharon.dawleychristiancentre@gmail.com
01952 505108

Mental & Physical
Wellbeing
Intergenerational Skill
Sharing
Healthy Eating and
sharing food
Education

BENEF I TS

Create a space 
     accessible to all

New Volunteers
Sensory Garden
Food Growing Space

PROPOSAL

Dawley Christian Centre, Garden, Coffee
Bar & Food Bank

High Street 
Dawley, TF4 2EX

Dawley

In May 2023, two girls from the Dawley community raised £2,000
through the Make a Change 11-18 competition (Telford and
Wrekin Council) to create a children’s food growing space at
Dawley Christian Centre.   The girls wanted to develop the
sensory garden and to encourage children to grow their own
food. 
I met Sharon in September, at the centre, and she showed me
around their space. The garden has been divided into sections
by a circuit of concrete paths. They are very keen that the space
can be accessed by all. The path leads to an area of hard
standing where a covered communal seating area will be built.

O V E R V I E W

A T  A  G L A N C E

Page 52



Volunteer sessions can be at times
to suit the individual.

Contact Sarah Houlston – Great
Dawley Town Council Project and
Event Manager
01952 567910 07876401714
sarahh@greatdawley.com

Food grown for local
community to share
a working example to
teach how food can be
grown in small spaces
opportunity to learn new
skills and join others 
Physical and mental
Health and wellbeing

BENEF I TS

Volunteers

NEEDS

Diane Morris Community Garden, Great
Dawley Council Hall, Dawley

Dawley

In 2015, a car park behind Dawley Town Hall was converted
into a community food growing space by volunteers, with
funds from Veolia and training sessions from a community
gardener.
Vegetables from this garden and Chelsea gardens within
Telford Town Park were donated to the Telford Food Bank.
Volunteers through the Let’s Grow project and Upstart in
Telford and Wrekin tended to the two gardens.
Currently there are breakfast club activities with John, a
volunteer leader. Families can plant and harvest produce to
take home.

O V E R V I E W
A T  A  G L A N C E

Page 53

mailto:sarahh@greatdawley.com


Rednall Fields, Little Dawley, is a green
guarantee site that is currently used
by local residents and dogwalkers.  
The committee proposed the planting
of 15-20 fruit trees on the site and
native edible shrubs within the existing
hedging to increase biodiversity.  The
orchard was given the go ahead in
September 2023.  

Access to green space
Shared resources
Social Events
Food sharing
Knowledge Exchange
Increased biodiversity

BENEF I TS

New Allotments
Community Orchard
Community food growing
space

PROPOSAL

Allotments Proposal 
Dawley

dawleycommunityallotments@gmail.com
Facebook page: Allotments for Dawley Hamlets 

Dawley & Little Dawley

A committee formed to Propose Allotments and at a
separate location, a community orchard.  
The allotments committee have requested the land at
the previous Phoenix school site in Dawley,  near to the
Captain Webb Primary School. The land is managed by
Great Dawley Town Council & Dawley Hamlets Parish
Council. 

In Oct 2022, 56 supporters signed a petition on
Change.org.
Applying the Smallholdings and Allotments Act 1908, to
provide land for garden usage in the community and
Right to Grow motion. (Councillor Rosemary Dartnall of
Shropshire Council.)

The Allotments have been approved in principle, they
are now 
awaiting application response from Telford and Wrekin
Council.

O V E R V I E W

A T  A  G L A N C E

Community Orchard 
Rednall Fields
Little Dawley

Page 54

mailto:dawleycommunityallotments@gmail.com


To continue to develop
and maintain the
gardens
Tools and Equipment.
To recruit more
volunteers

. 

NEEDS

Madeley Community Orchard 
Bartlett Gardens, Madeley,TF7 5LP. 

Madeley 

O V E R V I E W

The group would like help with team
leaders and committee members. They
also need:

shears, secateurs, telescopic loppers
and a Grass swipe
wheelbarrows
Benches with backs and arms
Morello cherry trees.

A T  A  G L A N C E

Mental & Physical
Wellbeing
Intergenerational Skill
Sharing
Community food growing
and sharing

BENEF I TS

Madeley Community Orchard was originally developed
as allotments.  There are now 70 different fruit trees
including many different varieties of  apples and pears,
and others; nut, peach and nectarine.  All the fruit is
grown for the local community to harvest and enjoy.  
There are a number of allotment beds for vegetables,
herbs, soft fruit bushes, long borders of herbaceous
plants for pollinators and a pond for wildlife.  The
gardens and trees are tended by a small group of
volunteers once a week.  The volunteers that help are
varying ages and abilities.   
Volunteering is on Tuesday mornings 10-12  Contact
Jude Pilgrim
01952 567280 or judepilgrim@virginmedia.com

Page 55



Apple pressing day was held on 21st
September 2023.  A huge press was
transported into the orchard and many
volunteers and local residents bought
empty bottles. Children and adults
searched out and picked the ripest
apples. The scratter macerated the
chopped up the apples before they
were squeezed in the press.

Mental & Physical
Wellbeing
Intergenerational activities
Food & skill sharing
Environmental Education

BENEF I TS

New Volunteers

NEEDS

Woodside Community Orchard,
Coalbrookdale, Telford, TF8 7ED.

Coalbrookdale

Woodside Community Orchard is managed by the Severn
Gorge Countryside Trust.   They hold an annual apple
pressing day when the local residents and the Severn Gorge
Countryside Trust volunteers join together to harvest and
juice the apples to take home. The volunteers help
throughout the year to maintain the orchard and other areas
within the trust’s land.  There is a main centre at the Trust
where they hold workshops, events and courses.

O V E R V I E W
A T  A  G L A N C E

The Orchard in the Spring 2023

Page 56



Access to the orchard has just been improved with
permeable pathway laid down for wheelchair,
scooter and pushchair access.  Darran also works
with The Silver Threads Hall to engage children in
sowing seeds and learning about the outdoor
environment.  Volunteer Opportunities 11am most
Saturdays. Contact Darran on the facebook page to
volunteer:
 
www.facebook.com/groups/donningtoncommunityor
chard

Mental & Physical
Wellbeing
Intergenerational Skill
Sharing
Healthy Eating
Education

BENEF I TS

New Volunteers

NEEDS

Liz Clare Community Orchard,
Bartlett Gardens, Donnington,

TF2 8GA

Donnington 

Managed by the Donnington Partnership CIO.  The orchard
was started by Yugoslavian European Voluntary Workers in the
1940's, after the Second World War.  The garden is open to
community groups, volunteers, schools and the public.
Transition Telford have been offering support to the orchard
since discovering the orchard in 2021.  The groups work
together to pick fruit, prune fruit trees and sponsored an
apple ID day with apple expert Wade Muggleton.  They also
donated fruit trees and a goji berry bush this year.

O V E R V I E W
A T  A  G L A N C E

Page 57



Woodside Allotments has beautiful communal outdoor
seating areas next to the community building with a
shared kitchen and indoor seating which has an
allotment supplies shop at the rear. There is a memorial
garden, beehives and shared polytunnel for plot-holders
to use to start their seedlings.  These areas bring people
together to enthuse, encourage, inspire and motivate
each other, to share ideas and skills.  Money is saved by
swapping and sharing seeds, plants and other
resources.  In the shop smaller quantities of seeds can
be found that have been divided up from larger packets,
to reduce waste and be more economical for plot-
holders.

Mental & Physical
Wellbeing
Intergenerational Skill
Sharing
Healthy Eating
Education
Rainwater harvesting
Resource sharing
social events

BENEF I TS

Woodside Allotments and
Leisure Gardeners Association,

Wyvern, Telford, TF7 5QB

Woodside, Telford

O V E R V I E W
A T  A  G L A N C E

Page 58



As part of the development of the new site, several saplings
have been planted to form a natural boundary.  TCS and
Telford MIND would like the space to provide a wider benefit to
the community through creating a diverse and sustainable
local green space.  They welcome any ideas or suggestions
from the local community.

 www.telford-mind.co.uk
 www.telfordcrisissupport.org.uk

Mental & Physical
Wellbeing
skills sharing
Social inclusion
local food production
Habitat creation
Sustainable gardening

BENEF I TS

Create an food growing
allotment
A social and
therapeutic space

PROPOSAL

Telford MIND & Telford Crisis
Support Allotment Garden,

Court Street Medical
Practice, Madeley,

TF7 5EE

Telford MIND, Telford Crisis Support and Madeley Court Medical
Practice are working in partnership to develop a allotment space.  
A place  to promote physical and mental wellbeing and grow food
for the local community. I joined the group at tea break and spoke
to two gentlemen who use the service provided by MIND.  They
said how much they enjoyed making bug boxes, tending plants,
and accessing the new green space. The Telford MIND green
social prescribers run sessions once a fortnight on Tuesdays 1-
4pm. 

Anyone interested in volunteering should contact: Adrian Payne,
Green Social Presrciber, Telford MIND: adrian.payne@telford-
mind.co.uk

O V E R V I E W

A T  A  G L A N C E

A diversity of fruit, vegetables and flowers have been planted this year including cabbages, beans,
strawberries, leeks, potatoes and sunflowers.  Donations of seeds and plants welcome. 

Page 59

http://www.telford-mind.co.uk/
http://www.telfordcrisissupport.org.uk/


 Sue, the school gardening club leader and Kathy
the school cook, have been working with the
children after school.  They have created themed
beds; fruit patches, herb beds, fruit patches, roots
beds, and companion planting of climbing beans
with sweetcorn.  The gardens have also provided
therapeutic activities for children who need some
time out during the day. RHS School Gardening
Awards Levels 1 & 2 have been achieved and they
are now working on Level 3.

Mental & Physical
Wellbeing
School curriculum links
Understanding
environment and
sustainability
Confidence and self
esteem
Teamwork and
communication
Links with home and the
community

BENEF I TS

School Allotments and
Orchard

PROPOSAL

Hollinswood Primary School
Allotments and Orchard,
Dale Acre Way, Hollinswood,
Telford, 

 Shropshire Good Food Partnership met with Susanne
(Eco School leader)  visited Hollinswood Primary
School, Telford, at the beginning of July 2023 to see
how the school allotments and orchard were
progressing and to find out more about their
sustainable practices. 
The school received a grant in May 2023, from the
King’s Coronation Fund. ‘The King’s Patch’ has been
developed to provide the children with more places to
grow. Several vegetable and fruit patches are being
developed within the school grounds.

O V E R V I E W

Eco Committee activities: The children have
upcycled broken welly boots from Forest
School to grow flowers for pollinating insects.
They have also upcycled old school furniture
to make planters. They also use pallets for
loose parts play, which is imaginative play
that the children engage in during breaks.

A T  A  G L A N C E

Page 60



Children have grown salad leaves in
repurposed fruit containers, which they
can take home and enjoy with their
families.

Kathy talks to the children to ask them
what they would like to eat and has a
wonderful way to motivate them to make
healthy choices. They help her to write the
menu’s. Kathy’s ‘squeaky beans’ have
become a favourite selection! With this
level of communication, she has been able
to reduce food waste dramatically and
also increase the number of meals
ordered.

Some ideas the school would like to
develop are:

a wormery
a greenhouse with safety glass
Grey water recycling (advice & ideas
needed on land drainage and safe
rainwater collection)

 The school expresses the need
for external expertise,
volunteers, and funding to
overcome challenges and
further develop their
sustainability initiatives. A
network or forum to exchange
knowledge, share best
practices, and collaborate with
businesses and organisations
interested in sustainable food
systems. The school also
wants to improve its external
communication efforts, such
as updating the website and
using social media platforms
to reach a wider audience.

N E E D S

Hollinswood was the
first school in the
Telford and Wrekin
borough and
Shropshire county to
receive the Plastic
Free Schools Award
(Surfers against
Sewage)in 2020. 

Suzanne, Kathy, Sue and Jo have
worked together, with the children, to

formulate an excellent example of what
can be achieved. Growing their own

food from school plot to school dinner
plate. They haven’t stopped there; they

have involved the families in roast
dinner days and have volunteers days
for example where parents and locally
businesses help to put in raised beds.

Page 61



The garden, above  pictured in March 2023,  when a Garden Organic
home and community composting session was delivered to local
residents at the adjoining centre.  Rachel and Anton from Garden
Organic explained the how and why of home composting for waste
reduction, recycling nutrients and building healthy diverse soil health,
teeming with life.  They bought along their soil microscope and worm
bin so residents could have a closer look at compost microbiology.
James and Lynn explained how they make compost in the garden at
Leegomery, to add organic matter and use no dig practices to build
and conserve healthy soil. They have water butts to collect rainwater
and they use woodchip mulch to conserve water and suppress
weeds.

Mental & Physical Health
and Wellbeing
Learn how to grow your
own food in a sustainable
way.
Free Food

BENEF I TS

A food growing garden
for the community
Events and workshops
Opportunity to join a
local Transition Town
group

Transition Telford
Leegomery Community

Garden, Leegomery, Telford

Leegomery Community garden is for local residents to share, to grow food
and to enjoy. The garden has a mixture of herbs, annual and perennial
vegetables, flowers to attract pollinators and fruit bushes.
Transition Telford hold regular gardening sessions on the second Tuesday of
the month.  They also meet on the first Tuesday of the month to discuss and
plan activities to help communities move away from fossil fuel dependence
and live more sustainably.  They work in partnership with other groups,
Climate Action Hub and Telford Repair Cafe and offer support to other
community gardens groups and Donnington Community Orchard.  They hold
three main public events each year; a Seed Swap, Plant Swap and a Harvest
Local.

A T  A  G L A N C E

More information on workdays and more ways to
get involved with Transition Telford can be found

on their Facebook page
https://www.facebook.com/transitiontelford/ and

by contacting them at:
transition.telford@gmail.com

 https://transitiontelford.wordpress.com/

O V E R V I E W

Page 62

https://www.facebook.com/transitiontelford/
https://transitiontelford.wordpress.com/


Useful Links 
Transition Telford 

Grow Local - SGFP

Severn Gorge Countryside Trust - Orchards  
https://www.severngorge.org.uk/

STUWA - The Healthy Living Garden Project

Good to Grow  https://www.sustainweb.org/goodtogrow
YouTube video https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=J4RHE4CfhZM
Exploring a Bountiful Community Garden in Leegomery, Telford.

Learn Telford https://learntelford.ac.uk/CourseSearch?keyword=Gardening

Gaia Seed Sovereignty https://www.seedsovereignty.info/

RHS Community gardening https://www.rhs.org.uk/get-involved/community-gardening

https://climateactionhub.org.uk/

https://www.gardenorganic.org.uk/expert-advice

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=supEWhEBJXU Glasbren Inspiring Small-Scale Market Garden’s
Approach to Connecting People with Food.  Permaculture Ethics.

https://www.soilassociation.org/

https://sustainablefoodtrust.org/podcast/in-conversation-with-tim-spector/   Tim Spector on
microbiomes, human and soil health.

https://www.theguardian.com/books/2022/nov/03/food-for-life-by-tim-spector-review-the-
science-of-eating-well

https://sustainablefoodtrust.org/news-views/soil-stomach-
plant/#:~:text=The%20layer%20of%20healthy%20topsoil,forms%20that%20plants%20can%20absorb.

https://www.theguardian.com/environment/2022/apr/17/dan-saladino-food-diversity

https://www.sustainweb.org/reports/sep23-the-fringe-farming-
toolkit/#:~:text=The%20fringe%20farming%20toolkit%20is,support%20for%20agroecological%20food%2
0growing.

https://www.mvuf.org.uk/garden/ MeanWood Valley Urban Farm CSA

https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/37116658/#:~:text=Conclusions%3A%20Study%20results%20suggest%
20that,consumption%20and%20decreasing%20UPF%20consumption. Effects of a School-Based
Gardening, Cooking, and Nutrition Cluster Randomized Controlled Trial on Unprocessed and Ultra-
Processed Food Consumption
Matthew R Jeans 1, Matthew J Landry 2, Sarvenaz Vandyousefi 3, Erin A Hudson 1, 

https://www.transitionwilmslow.co.uk/wilmslow-community-market-gardens
Page 63

https://www.transitionwilmslow.co.uk/wilmslow-community-market-gardens
https://transitiontelford.wordpress.com/
https://www.shropshiregoodfood.org/grow-local
https://www.severngorge.org.uk/orchards/
https://www.facebook.com/media/set/?vanity=1665780253504476&set=a.1674425549306613
https://www.goodtogrowuk.org/
https://www.sustainweb.org/goodtogrow/
https://learntelford.ac.uk/CourseSearch?keyword=Gardening
https://climateactionhub.org.uk/
https://www.gardenorganic.org.uk/expert-advice
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=supEWhEBJXU
https://www.soilassociation.org/
https://www.theguardian.com/books/2022/nov/03/food-for-life-by-tim-spector-review-the-science-of-eating-well
https://www.theguardian.com/books/2022/nov/03/food-for-life-by-tim-spector-review-the-science-of-eating-well
https://sustainablefoodtrust.org/news-views/soil-stomach-plant/#:~:text=The%20layer%20of%20healthy%20topsoil,forms%20that%20plants%20can%20absorb.
https://sustainablefoodtrust.org/news-views/soil-stomach-plant/#:~:text=The%20layer%20of%20healthy%20topsoil,forms%20that%20plants%20can%20absorb.
https://www.theguardian.com/environment/2022/apr/17/dan-saladino-food-diversity
https://www.sustainweb.org/reports/sep23-the-fringe-farming-toolkit/#:~:text=The%20fringe%20farming%20toolkit%20is,support%20for%20agroecological%20food%20growing.
https://www.sustainweb.org/reports/sep23-the-fringe-farming-toolkit/#:~:text=The%20fringe%20farming%20toolkit%20is,support%20for%20agroecological%20food%20growing.
https://www.sustainweb.org/reports/sep23-the-fringe-farming-toolkit/#:~:text=The%20fringe%20farming%20toolkit%20is,support%20for%20agroecological%20food%20growing.
https://www.mvuf.org.uk/garden/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/37116658/#:~:text=Conclusions%3A%20Study%20results%20suggest%20that,consumption%20and%20decreasing%20UPF%20consumption.
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/37116658/#:~:text=Conclusions%3A%20Study%20results%20suggest%20that,consumption%20and%20decreasing%20UPF%20consumption.
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/?term=Jeans+MR&cauthor_id=37116658
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/37116658/#full-view-affiliation-1
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/?term=Landry+MJ&cauthor_id=37116658
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/37116658/#full-view-affiliation-2
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/?term=Vandyousefi+S&cauthor_id=37116658
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/37116658/#full-view-affiliation-3
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/?term=Hudson+EA&cauthor_id=37116658
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/37116658/#full-view-affiliation-1
https://www.transitionwilmslow.co.uk/wilmslow-community-market-gardens


This page is intentionally left blank



      

Page | 1  
 

Environment Scrutiny Work Programme 

Issue / Topic Brief Description Directorate Council 
Values/Priorities 

Format Meeting Comments  
 

21 June 2023 – Committee Meeting 

Terms Of 
Reference 

For the Committee to 
agree the Terms of 
Reference for 
2023/24 

Policy & 
Governance 

A community-
focussed, innovative 
council providing 
efficient, effective and 
quality services 

Committee 
Agenda Item  

Constitutional Function 
 

Outcomes: 
 
That the Terms of Reference be agreed for the 2023/24 municipal year.  

Work Programme For the Committee to 
agree the proposed 
work programme for 
2023/24 

Policy & 
Governance 

A community-
focussed, innovative 
council providing 
efficient, effective and 
quality services 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Draft work programme delegated to 
each scrutiny committee by SMB on 
6 June 2023 

Outcomes: 
 
The draft work programme be agreed.  

Annual Scrutiny 
Report- 
Environment 
Committee 

To review the 
Environment Scrutiny 
Committee portion of 
the Annual Scrutiny 
Report for 2022/23 

Policy & 
Governance  

A community-
focussed, innovative 
council providing 
efficient, effective and 
quality services 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

To provide new committee Members 
with context of the previous work of 
the committee 

Outcomes: 
 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 6



      

Page | 2  
 

The report be noted and discussion over the years upcoming work. 

14 September 2023 – Committee Meeting 

Corporate 
Catering 

To review the role in 
net zero of the 
Council’s Corporate 
Catering function, 
particularly in relation 
to procurement 

Communities, 
Customer & 
Commercial 
Services 
 

Our natural 
environment is 
protected – we take a 
leading role in 
addressing the 
climate emergency. 

Committee 
Agenda Item with 
the Committee 
asked to consider 
establishing a 
Task and Finish 
Group 

Committee Meeting, consideration 
to be given to formation of a working 
group to scrutinise further 
 

Outcomes: 
The Committee received a presentation on Corporate Catering and the work that the Catering team had done in the role of net 
zero within the school setting.  
 

Climate Change 
Adaptation 

To provide feedback 
and comments on the 
upcoming adaptation 
work. 

Communities, 
Customer & 
Commercial 
Services 

Our natural 
environment is 
protected – we take a 
leading role in 
addressing the 
climate emergency. 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Committee Meeting item 

Outcomes: 
The Committee received a presentation on the Council’s plan for Climate Change Adaptation. Members were pleased with the 
proposed outcomes and welcomed the approach and to work with officers on this. 
 

29 November 2023 – Committee Meeting 

Biodiversity Net 
Gain 

Review of the 
biodiversity net gain 
strategy following 
changes in legislation 

Prosperity & 
Investment 
 

Everyone benefits 
from a thriving 
economy 

Committee 
Agenda Item with 
the Committee 
asked to consider 
establishing a 
Task and Finish 
Group 

Initial scene setting meeting  

P
age 66



      

Page | 3  
 

Outcomes: The Committee received a report on the Biodiversity Net Gain legislation implemented by Central Government and 
were provided an update on how this would impact local policy before the formal implementation in 2024. 
 
 

River Pollution Review of the current 
river sewage position 

Neighbourhood & 
Enforcement 
Services 
 

Our natural 
environment is 
protected – we take a 
leading role in 
addressing the 
climate emergency 

Committee 
Agenda Item  

Severn Trent and The Environment 
Agency representatives will be in 
attendance for this meeting 

Outcome: 
Members received a presentation from the Environment Agency and evidence from both Severn Trent and the Highways team 
on River Pollution 
 

6 February 2024 – Committee Meeting 

Biodiversity Net 
Gain 

Review of the 
biodiversity net gain 
strategy following 
changes in legislation 

Prosperity & 
Investment 
 

Everyone benefits 
from a thriving 
economy 

Committee 
Agenda Item with 
the Committee 
asked to consider 
establishing a 
Task and Finish 
Group 

Follow-up meeting following the 
formal guidance of the legislation 
being implemented by Government.   

Outcomes: 
Members received an additional update on the recent Biodiversity Net Gain legislation. This followed an update of which 
Members were informed that the new legislation had been laid in Parliament and that new planning applications would need to 
provide a minimum number of Biodiversity Net Gain as part of the process.  
 

20 March 2024 – Committee Meeting 

Climate Change 
and Plastic Free 
Telford & Wrekin 
 

Annual Update on the 
Council’s Climate 
Change agenda 

Communities, 
Customer & 
Commercial 
Services 

Our natural 
environment is 
protected – we take a 
leading role in 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Committee Agenda Item 
March 2024 

P
age 67



      

Page | 4  
 

 addressing the 
climate emergency 

Outcomes: 
 
 

Shropshire Good 
Food – 12 month 
review 

Update on the 
Shropshire Good 
Food Project 
following the 
presentation to 
Members in the 
precious year 

Communities, 
Customer & 
Commercial 
Services 
 

A community-
focussed, innovative 
council providing 
efficient, effective and 
quality services 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Committee Agenda Item 
March 2024 

Outcomes: 
 
 

New suggestion 

New housing 
developments and 
removal of trees 

An update on the 
criteria for removing 
established tree lines 
for housing 
development 

Prosperity & 
Investment 
 

Our natural 
environment is 
protected – we take a 
leading role in 
addressing the 
climate emergency 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Committee Agenda Item – public 
scrutiny suggestion 
 

Outcomes: 
 
 

Biodiversity Duty An update on the 
Council’s Biodiversity 
Duty. 

Prosperity & 
Investment 

Our natural 
environment is 
protected – we take a 
leading role in 
addressing the 
climate emergency 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Committee Agenda Item 

Outcomes: 

P
age 68



      

Page | 5  
 

 

 
 

Local Nature 
Recovery Strategy 

An update on the 
Local Nature 
Recovery Strategy 

Prosperity & 
Investment 

Our natural 
environment is 
protected – we take a 
leading role in 
addressing the 
climate emergency 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Committee Agenda Item 

Outcomes: 
 
 
 

Id Verde – 
Environmental 
works monitored 

     

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Telford and Wrekin Council Becoming Carbon Neutral and Plastic Free Update
	5 Shropshire Good Food - 12 Month Review
	SGFP - Case Studies (20)
	T&W Grow Local - SGFP[2305843009232973644]

	6 Work Programme Review

